

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

between

MCKENZIE-WILLAMETTE MEDICAL CENTER



SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION LOCAL 49

in effect from

SEPTEMBER 21, 2021

— through ———

DECEMBER 31, 2024

3536 SE 26TH AVE PORTLAND. OR 97202



1-800-955-3352 | FAX 503-238-6692

We Stood Strong and Won!

Nothing in this contract was given to us. Our members stood strong to demand a fair contract and took to the picket line in two strikes to demand that McKenzie Willamette Respect Us, Protect Us and Pay Us! Our unity and our two strikes paid off with a strong contract. Here are some of the improvements we fought so hard to win:

Competitive Wages

- ✓ Strong Across the Board Increases. 4.5% at ratification, 3% on 1/1/2023 and 3% on 1/1/2024!
- ✓ Market adjustments for classifications that were especially behind, CNA2, Surgical Tech., OB Tech, OR Custodian, Phlebotomist, Pharmacy Tech and Sterile Processing Tech!
- √ \$300 ratification bonus!

Affordable Healthcare

- ✓ Limited Healthcare Cost Increases: no increase in 2021, 5% in 2022 and 2023.
- ✓ Increased healthcare subsidy, employees earning less than \$45,000 a year will qualify for reduced insurance costs!

Pandemic Protections

- ✓ \$750 COVID appreciation bonus! Pro rated for part time employees, minimum of \$500. The bonus applies to all people employed as of 12/1/2021, including HHS employees!
- ✓ A greater voice in pandemic policy, PPE and other issues!

Outsourcing

- While we were not able to stop the outsourcing of employees to HHS, we did succeed in winning some guarantees and protections.
- Stronger contract language requiring management to bargain before future outsourcing,
- ✓ Union representation, PTO rollover, severance pay, preferential rehiring and a COVID bonus for outsourced employees. Bargaining with HHS starts soon and all McKenzie Willamette workers can support a fair contract for HHS employees.

And More...

- ✓ Guaranteed 401k match: 3.5% employer match on a 6% employee contribution. First 1% matched 100%, 2%-6% matched at 50%.
- ✓ Education and staff development: Increased the union education fund by \$10,000 a year.
- ✓ Increased differentials and standby
- ✓ Better valuing prior experience
- ✓ Consecutive day OT continues until you get a day off.

And much more.....

In Unity,

Your 2021-2022 McKenzie Willamette Bargaining Team:

Aaron Green-Recovery Room

Emmy Gordon-Endoscopy

Rachel Gordon-Short Stay

Mike Miller-Diagnostic Imaging

Molly Reed-Pharmacy

Table of Contents

	Page
AGREEMENT	1
ARTICLE 1 – PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT	1
ARTICLE 2 – DISCRIMINATION/CONFIDENTIALITY	1
ARTICLE 3 – JOINT OBLIGATIONS	2
ARTICLE 4 – RECOGNITION AND UNION SECURITY	3
ARTICLE 5 – ACCESS OF UNION REPRESENTATIVES	5
ARTICLE 6 – JURISDICTION BY UNION	5
ARTICLE 7 – NO STRIKE/NO LOCKOUT	6
ARTICLE 8 – DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE	7
ARTICLE 9 – GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	7
ARTICLE 10 – UNION NOTICES	8
ARTICLE 11 – SUB-CONTRACTING	9
ARTICLE 12 – SAVINGS CLAUSE	9
ARTICLE 13 – SUCCESSORS	10
ARTICLE 14 – MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	10
ARTICLE 15 – TYPES OF EMPLOYEES	11
ARTICLE 16 – SENIORITY	14
ARTICLE 17 – JOB DESCRIPTIONS	21
ARTICLE 18 – WORK LOAD DISTRIBUTION	21
ARTICLE 19 – POSTING SCHEDULES	21
ARTICLE 20 – HOURS OF EMPLOYMENT AND OVERTIME	23

ARTICLE 21 – REST PERIOD DAILY	25
ARTICLE 22 – PAY DAY	26
ARTICLE 23 – WAGE RATES	26
ARTICLE 24 – RECOGNITION OF PRIOR EXPERIENCE	27
ARTICLE 25 – DIFFERENTIALS	28
ARTICLE 26 – REPORTING PAY	29
ARTICLE 27 – STANDBY PAY	29
ARTICLE 28 – WORK IN A HIGHER CLASSIFICATION	30
ARTICLE 29 – CHANGE OF CLASSIFICATION	30
ARTICLE 30 – EARNED LEAVE	31
ARTICLE 31 – BEREAVEMENT LEAVE	35
ARTICLE 32 – JURY DUTY	35
ARTICLE 33 – LEAVE OF ABSENCE	35
ARTICLE 34 – EDUCATION	37
ARTICLE 35 – HEALTH AND WELFARE	38
ARTICLE 36 – GROUP LIFE INSURANCE	40
ARTICLE 37 – DISABILITY INSURANCE	40
ARTICLE 38 – PENSION	41
ARTICLE 39 – UNIFORMS AND LAUNDRY	41
ARTICLE 40 – PHYSICAL EXAMINATIONS	41
ARTICLE 41 – MEALS	42
ARTICLE 42 – SAFETY AND HEALTH	42
ARTICLE 43 – DURATION OF AGREEMENT	42

ARTICLE 44 – SUBSTANCE-FREE WORKPLACE	42
APPENDIX A – WAGE SCALE	43
APPENDIX B – 12-HOUR SHIFTS	50
APPENDIX C – RECOGNITION CLAUSE	51
APPENDIX D – EMPLOYEE RATES	53
Letter of Understanding: PANDEMIC POLICY	55
LETTER OF AGREEMENT: CARDIOVASCULAR OPERATING ROOM ("CVOR")	59
LETTER OF AGREEMENT: ENDOSCOPY	60
LETTER OF AGREEMENT: DUAL MODALITY	61
SIDELETTER ON "FINLEY HOSPITAL" TEXT	62

AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall become effective on September 1, 2021 shall remain in effect until 11:59 pm on December 31, 2024 and from year to year thereafter; provided, however, that either party upon no less than ninety (90) calendar days written notice to the other part, prior to December 31, 2024 or December 31st of any subsequent year, may notify the other party of its desire to amend or terminate this Agreement upon the expiration of its current term. If such notice to amend or terminate is timely served, negotiations shall commence between the parties within fifteen (15) days after receipt thereof. Request to amend shall be submitted with the notification

WITNESSETH TO:

That the parties hereto have agreed as follows:

ARTICLE 1 – PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT

It is the intent and purpose of the parties to set forth in this Agreement, rates of pay, hours of work and conditions of employment to be observed between the parties. A listing of these positions can be found in Appendix C. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent the Hospital from continuing the long-standing practice of utilizing non-bargaining unit personnel in bargaining unit work unless it would cause a bargaining unit employee to lose regularly scheduled hours of work.

ARTICLE 2 – DISCRIMINATION/CONFIDENTIALITY

- 1. Discrimination The Hospital and the Union agree that each will fully comply with applicable laws, regulations, and hospital policies regarding discrimination and will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment, on the basis of, race, color, national origin, religious affiliation, sex, age, marital status, sexual orientation, disability, gender identity or expression, genetic information or any other protected class status in accordance with applicable federal, state and local laws. There shall be no distinction between the wages paid men and the wages paid women for the performance of comparable quantity and quality of work on the same or similar jobs.
- 2. Confidentiality MWMC and its employees are in possession of and have access to a broad variety of confidential, sensitive, and proprietary information, the inappropriate release of which could be injurious to individuals, MWMC business partners and MWMC itself. Every MWMC employee has an obligation to actively protect and safeguard confidential, sensitive, and proprietary information in a manner designed to prevent the unauthorized disclosure and use of that information and in accordance with all applicable federal and state laws and regulations.

ARTICLE 3 – JOINT OBLIGATIONS

- 1. The Hospital's obligations as a health care facility are recognized. Nothing in the Agreement is intended to limit the Hospital in determinations of matters pertaining to patient care or equipment and processes to be used for the efficient utilization of human resources so long as appropriate wage rates are paid.
- 2. During the term of this Agreement, the Hospital, its employees and the Union, agree to work in concert toward the common objective of finding and implementing ways of reducing the acceleration of increases in the costs of health care services to members of the community.
- 3. Employee /Management Cooperation—Communication Committee The Employer and Union agree to establish a Communication Committee to provide both management representatives and employees an opportunity to discuss issues of mutual concern.

Meetings shall generally be held at least quarterly unless mutually agreed to by the parties. A maximum of eight (8) bargaining unit committee members will be paid up to ninety (90) minutes for attendance at scheduled meetings. A maximum of one (1) employee per department shall attend such meetings.

It is not the intent of the parties that the committee considers issues that should more appropriately be reviewed by the grievance procedure. Trends and issues that appear to lead to grievance are appropriate discussion items. The committee functions in an advisory capacity only and will not constitute Collective Bargaining. Committee recommendations will be forwarded to the appropriate parties. The hospital has sole discretion to accept Committee recommendation. An analysis of the perceived value of the committee will be ongoing.

- 4. Staffing The Union and the Hospital recognize the importance of safe working conditions for employees and of adequate staffing in all departments for the provision of quality care. The issues of staffing shall be referred to the Employee/ Management Cooperation-Communication Committee. The Hospital also encourages employees to participate in their Department Staff meetings and their Unit Practice Committees.
 - a. Union representation. The union shall appoint at least two (2) members to be representatives on the nurse staffing committee subject to the condition subsequent that the appointment of the second (2nd) member is approved by the Hospital Nurse Staffing Committee.
 - b. Pay and Release. Time spent doing Nurse Staffing Committee work shall be compensated at their regular rate of pay. Employees scheduled to work during the meeting will be released to attend the meeting.

ARTICLE 4 - RECOGNITION AND UNION SECURITY

- 1. The Hospital recognizes the Union as the exclusive bargaining agent of the employees covered by this Agreement for the purpose of collective bargaining with respect to rates of pay, hours of work, and working conditions.
- 2. Membership in or fair share payments to the Union is voluntary for employees hired on or before July 9, 2007.

However, once an employee joins the Union, the employee must as a condition of employment, maintain membership in the Union for the duration of this Agreement.

All employees hired on or after July 10th, 2007 or any non-bargaining unit employees who transfer or promote into a bargaining unit position on or after July 10th, 2007 shall become members of the Union or make fair share payments to the Union as a condition of employment after thirty-one (31) calendar days of beginning their employment. All bargaining unit employees must maintain membership in good standing or make monthly fair share payments for the duration of the collective bargaining agreement.

Steward's Rights - A steward will be allowed thirty (30) minutes to educate new employees about the Union in person at all new employee orientations, or another mutually agreed upon time within the employee's first month of employment. Hospital will provide an annual calendar of new employee orientation dates to the Union in December of the preceding year.

The employer shall provide to the Union a list of all employees attending the orientation as many days as possible prior to such orientation and no later than one (1) day before the orientation. The employer and the Union agree that for the life of this agreement, the employer will be absent from the room during the new employee orientation. The orientation shall be mandatory for new employees and attendance will be treated the same as attendance at mandatory in-services.

3. For the duration of this Agreement, the Hospital shall deduct from each employee's wages, initiation fees, monthly Union dues, fair share payments, and COPE deductions, as specified by the Union; provided that the employee has signed a written assignment and authorization which has been received by the Hospital. Such assignment and authorization shall be effective at the time it is signed by the employee, and it shall remain in accordance with the conditions specified on the Union authorization form. Employees who exercise their right of non-association, based on a bona fide religious tenets or teachings of a church or religious body of which an employee is a member may exercise the right to pay an amount equivalent to regular union dues and initiation fees to one of the following organizations: United Way, MWMC Foundation or American Cancer Society. Payments are to be made monthly or in advance with receipts sent to the President of the Union.

The parties acknowledge and agree that the term "written authorization" as provided in this Agreement includes authorizations created and maintained by use of electronic records and electronic signatures consistent with state and federal law. The Union, therefore, may use electronic records to verify Union membership, obtain authorization from employees for voluntary deduction of Union dues and fees from wages or payments for remittance to the Union, and obtain

authorization from employees for voluntary deductions from wages or payments for remittance to COPE Funds, subject to the requirements of state and federal law. Provided the records comply with applicable law, the employer shall accept such electronic records from the Union and give full force and effect to such authorizations as "written authorization" for purposes of this Agreement.

- 4. The following general conditions will be applicable:
 - a. The Hospital will provide the Union an electronic list in a format the Hospital can provide such as MS Excel by the eighteenth (18th) of each month of all the new employees hired for the period between the sixteenth (16th) of the prior month through the fifteenth (15th) of the current month, a list of terminated employees and a list of employees who have transferred out of the bargaining unit. This monthly electronic transmission shall also contain a list all bargaining unit employees with name, employee identification or social security number or other mutually agreeable unique identifying number, monthly dues, fair share and COPE deduction amounts, and gross monthly wages with overtime excluded from the prior month. The Union recognizes the confidential nature of all represented employees' social security numbers and agrees to maintain reasonable safeguards to preserve the confidentiality of these numbers. In addition, the Hospital will supply the Union a monthly electronic list of bargaining unit employees' names, mutually agreeable unique identifying number, home and mailing addresses, department names and codes to which each employee is assigned, job classifications and codes for each employee, hire dates, birth dates, rates of pay, employee status, hours of work in the preceding month, including straight-time overtime, and call-in time. By December 18th of each year, the Union and the Hospital shall establish a mutually agreeable calendar for the following year with billing due dates and file transmission dates.
 - b. By the twenty-fifth (25th) of each month, the President of the local Union will provide the Hospital with a list of employees indicating the monthly dues and initiations fees. The Union, upon request will also provide the Hospital with a copy of the membership and COPE check-off authorization.
 - c. Deductions for initiation fees and dues will be made from the employees' pay checks each pay day not to exceed two (2) pay days per month and submitted to the Union office no later than seven (7) calendar days after the same is deducted.
- 5. The Union shall indemnify the Hospital and save it harmless against any and all suits, claims, demands and liabilities that shall arise out of or be reason of any action that shall be taken by the Hospital for the purpose of complying with the provisions of Article 4, or in reliance upon any assignment and authorization form (including but not limited to any electronic record and any electronic signature encompassed by Article 4, Section 3), list or information which shall have been furnished to the Hospital under such provisions.
- 6. When new employees are hired who are subject to the Agreement, the Hospital shall deliver to such employees a written notice stating that the Hospital recognizes the Union as the collective bargaining agent for the employees covered by the Agreement and quoting or paraphrasing the provisions of Article 4 of the Agreement. A representative of the Union shall be given thirty (30)

minutes with each new employee orientation class for the purpose of discussing the benefits of membership in the Union. The employees will be given thirty (30) calendar days from the date of hire to declare in writing their preference for membership or fair share.

7. Union Stewards - The Union shall notify the Employer of the names of all Union Stewards.

Except as outlined in this agreement and for the direct representational time, such as steps in the grievance procedure, no employee shall engage in Union business during working hours.

Within ninety (90) days of the adoption of this agreement, the parties will identify a suitable locker or storage space for union materials. Union stewards will be provided with access to a locker or lockable storage area for union materials; the union will be responsible for providing a lock and for providing the key or combination to union stewards.

From time to time, issues of mutual concern will arise which may require discussions/meetings between a bargaining unit representative and a member and/or a management representative. Such discussions when practicable shall be held during regular working hours on the Employer's premises and without loss of pay to participating employees. Prior to the discussions/meetings, the bargaining unit representative will request approval from the supervisor(s) of the work area(s) as far as in advance as possible; however, approval will not be capriciously denied.

Stewards will conduct investigation activities away from public areas and immediate work unit.

ARTICLE 5 – ACCESS OF UNION REPRESENTATIVES

Duly authorized representatives of the Union shall be permitted at all reasonable times to enter the Hospital for the purpose of transacting Union business and observing conditions under which employees are employed; provided, however, that no interference with the work of employees shall result and such right of entry shall at all times be subject to general rules applicable to non-employees, including but not limited to those relating to patient privacy, and includes reporting to the Human Resources Director or designee. The Union Representative shall preschedule visits to the Hospital as often as reasonably possible. When on hospital premises, the Union Representative shall wear an identification badge with name, title, and picture on it. Concerns about access raised by management will be addressed by the union in a timely manner.

ARTICLE 6 – JURISDICTION BY UNION

The Union agrees that in the event of any Union jurisdictional dispute with respect to any work or classification of employment covered hereby, such dispute shall be settled between the Unions in accordance with their established practices without permitting the same to interfere in any way with the progress and prosecution of the work hereunder. Pending the settlement of any such dispute, the work shall continue the same basis as it was being performed at the time the jurisdictional dispute arose.

ARTICLE 7 – NO STRIKE/NO LOCKOUT

- During the life of this Agreement including any extension hereof, the Union, for and on behalf of its
 officers, agents and the employees covered by this Agreement, agrees and promises that neither it
 nor they (officers, agents and the employees covered by this Agreement) will directly or indirectly
 authorize, cause, encourage, assist, condone, sanction or participate in any way in any strike,
 including but not limited to any sympathy strike, stoppage, interruption or delay of work or boycott,
 and/or picketing whether such activity would be of a primary or secondary nature.
- 2. The Hospital agrees that it will not engage in a lockout, as defined herein, of bargaining unit employees during the period of this Agreement. A lockout is hereby defined under this Agreement to mean the withholding of work from bargaining unit employees by the Employer in order to obtain concessions from them and the Union with respect to their wages, hours, or working conditions. A layoff, reduction in force (including downsizing or rightsizing), temporary or permanent closing of any facility, department or unit, or discontinuance of any Hospital functions or operations by the Hospital because it determined that it is, for any reason, in its best interests shall not be defined as lockout.
- 3. The Hospital shall have the right to discipline, up to and including termination of employment, for employees who engage in any conduct in violation of this Article.
- 4. The Hospital shall be entitled to seek an injunction for any alleged violation of this Article.
- 5. Should a strike, as defined in Section 1, above, occur, the Union immediately upon learning of the strike, shall:
 - a. Notify the Hospital, in writing that such conduct and/or activities by the employees or others
 has not been called or sanctioned by the Union, with a copy of such notification posted on all of
 the Union's bulletin boards;
 - b. Notify the employees in writing, and, whenever possible orally, both individually and by posting notices at appropriate locations, including at the Union's local office, of its disapproval and disavowal of such conduct and action(s), and simultaneously instruct such employees that they must immediately:
 - i. Cease and desist from all prohibited conduct and action(s); and
 - ii. Offer in writing to the Hospital to return to work immediately or face dismissal.
- 6. The Hospital has the right to file a grievance under Article 9 Grievance Procedure with the Union for any conduct or actions that violate this Article.

ARTICLE 8 - DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE

- 1. Just Cause No employee who has successfully completed the probationary period shall be discharged or subject to disciplinary action without just cause. Except in situations justifying immediate discharge, it is recognized that the Hospital employs a system of progressive discipline in the counseling and constructive discipline of employees.
- 2. An employee desiring an appeal for disciplinary action or discharge must file a grievance with the Hospital within fourteen (14) calendar days. Any protest filed in accordance with the foregoing shall be subject to the grievance and arbitration provisions of this Agreement.
- 3. Removal of Disciplines Upon request by the employee, written disciplinary notices, including warnings, reprimands and suspensions will be removed from the employee's personnel file after eighteen (18) months if there have been no further disciplinary occurrences during that 18-month period. Disciplinary actions for the following conduct will remain in the employee's personnel file, but will not be considered as part of further disciplinary action after thirty six (36) months with no repeat occurrences; (1) violation of the Employer's non-discrimination policies, including sexual harassment; (2) conduct threatening or endangering patient safety; (3) assault/violence against another person; (4) theft or falsifying records; (5) unlawful breach of confidentiality or other privacy violations; or (6) violation of the Employer's substance free workplace policy.
- 4. At the time an employee is discharged, but in no event later than forty-eight (48) hours thereafter, he/she shall be provided with the specific reasons for the discharge from the Hospital, in writing. However, failure to meet this time limit shall not be the basis for overturning the discharge. If a department manager has overlooked the above time limit, he/she shall immediately respond to a request for the reasons in writing.

ARTICLE 9 – GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

- 1. Definition A "grievance" shall consist of any dispute between the Union or employee and the Hospital arising out of his/her employment involving the interpretation or application of any one or more provisions of this Agreement. If a resolution cannot be met, then the union and the hospital will meet to resolve the grievance as expediently as possible.
 - Recognizing that many complaints and misunderstandings may be resolved short of becoming grievances, it is agreed that both the Union and the Hospital shall encourage employees and management to first discuss any complaint or misunderstanding within the employee's specific departments in keeping with the Hospital's conflict resolution policy.
- 2. It is agreed that, should any dispute arise between the Employer, Represented Employee or the Union as to the true interpretation or application of this Agreement, the following successive steps will be used: (Time limits set forth in the following steps may only be extended by mutual written consent of the parties hereto.)

- **Step 1** Within ten (10) calendar days after the first occurrence of a situation or the employee's first knowledge of the situation, condition, or action giving rise to the alleged grievance, the employee(s) affected or the Union representative may present the grievance to his/her supervisor in writing on the appropriate form with a copy being sent to the Director of Human Resources. The grievance must state the employee's name and Article in question.
- **Step 2** If the grievance is not satisfactorily resolved within ten (10) calendar days after presentation to the supervisor, it shall be reduced to writing and submitted to the department manager and a copy sent to Director of Human Resources. Such written grievance shall specify the provisions of the Agreement allegedly violated and the specific remedy requested.
- **Step 3** If the grievance has not been satisfactorily resolved by the department manager within ten (10) calendar days, it shall be presented to the Director of Human Resources or designee. The Director of Human Resources or designee shall respond in writing within fourteen (14) calendar days after receipt of the grievance.
- **Step 4** If the grievance is not mutually resolved at Step 3, the union or the hospital may request mediation by the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS), and if the other party agrees to mediation, submit the issue to FMCS within fourteen (14) days of the Step 3 response. The federal mediator will issue a recommendation at the close of the mediation session with a condensed decision setting forth the reason for the decision. The mediator's opinion is not a binding decision. Neither the union nor the hospital will retain legal counsel for representation during the mediation. The parties may mutually agree to the use of counsel. There should be no transcripts of the session and no written briefs.
- **Step 5** Within fourteen (14) calendar days after presentation at this level, the Hospital and the Union shall agree upon an arbitrator from a panel of five (5) arbitrators furnished by the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service. The arbitrator shall render a decision as promptly as possible, and in any event, within thirty (30) calendar days from date of case presentation. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on both parties. The arbitrator shall have no power to change, alter, detract from, or add to, the provisions of this Agreement, but shall have the power only to apply and interpret the provisions of this Agreement in reaching a decision.

The arbitrator's fee and expenses shall be borne equally by both parties.

ARTICLE 10 – UNION NOTICES

- 1. The Union shall be privileged to post notices of Union meetings and business outside the entrance of the cafeteria on the Hospital's bulletin board and on a designated union bulletin board in each work unit. The specially designated Union bulletin board will be locked and keys will be made available for the Steward Council.
- 2. The Hospital agrees that, insofar as the availability of a conference room, auditorium, or other suitable meeting room does not hinder the normal operation of the Hospital, such room may be

used to conduct meetings of bargaining unit employees. The Union agrees that requests for use of such meeting rooms shall first be scheduled through the Human Resources Director or designee.

ARTICLE 11 – SUB-CONTRACTING

- Where a decision to sub-contract is made by the Hospital, it agrees to bargain its decision and the
 effects, if any, on bargaining unit members. Before sub-contracting work, the Hospital shall notify
 the Union at least sixty (60) days prior to such sub-contracting. The parties agree that in the event of
 subcontracting of work currently performed by union members, the new employer will recognize
 the Union as the exclusive collective bargaining representative of the members whose work is the
 subject of subcontracting.
- 2. An employee, whose position is sub-contracted out, shall have the following rights and options:
 - a. The employee may apply for an open position at the Hospital for which the employee is qualified or may become reasonably qualified. The employee shall be given the position over other candidates whose positions were unaffected by the sub-contract. This shall be effective during the employee's employment. When the employee is selected for an open position, the employee shall not suffer a reduction of pay or benefits;
 - The employee may apply for tuition reimbursement in accordance with Article 34- Education, during employment and for a period of six (6) months after the employee has been involuntarily terminated due to sub-contracting;
 - The Hospital agrees to require the sub-contractor to give preferential treatment for an open position, during its initial hiring process, to any employee involuntary terminated due to subcontracting; and,
 - d. If the employee is unable to exercise rights under this sub-contracting provision, the employee shall be afforded all layoff and recall rights as specified in Article 16- Seniority;
 - e. The Hospital agrees to discuss alternatives to involuntary job losses due to sub-contracting.
 - f. The Hospital shall make reasonable efforts to mitigate involuntary job loss through attrition and transfers.

ARTICLE 12 – SAVINGS CLAUSE

It is the belief of the parties hereto that all clauses and provisions of this Agreement are lawful. If, however, any portion of this Agreement is determined by the courts or the proper governmental agency to be in contravention to any state or federal law, then such provision shall not be applicable or enforced or performed except to the extent permitted by law. Both parties agree to construe any provision held to be contrary to the law as closely to its bargained-for purpose permissible by law; and to agree on a revised provision that as closely as legally possible mirrors the purpose of such invalidated

provision. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held illegal or of no legal effect, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby.

ARTICLE 13 – SUCCESSORS

Successors and Assigns - This Agreement shall be binding upon both parties, their successors or assigns. In the event of sale or transfer of the Hospital, or any part thereof, the purchaser or the transferee shall be bound by this Agreement.

ARTICLE 14 – MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

Except for those specific modifications to rights made by the terms of this Agreement, the Employer retains all rights to direct and control the affairs of the Hospital in all particulars, to exercise sole and exclusive discretion and take unilateral action on all matters, which shall include but not be limited to the following:

- a. The types of health care and community service provided by the Hospital.
- b. The size and location of the Hospital, the number of specific units, and changes therein.
- c. The means of providing health care services as required by state licensure, federal regulations, standards of care, the practice of the Medical Staff, and the welfare of the patients.
- d. Technological change. If the Hospital determines that changes in technology may result in lay off situations, the Union shall be given an opportunity to discuss the impact and offer alternatives.
- e. The overall organization of Hospital activities.
- f. Control of the quality of services.
- g. Acquisition, design, and control of Hospital property.
- h. The safety of patients, personnel, and the protection of property.
- i. Charges for services and other relationships between patients and the Administration or governing board of the Hospital.
- j. Determination that a period of emergency exists in the Hospital.
- k. The designation of supervisory employees as agents of Hospital management and the delegation of authority to them.

- I. Selection of qualified employees for hire, scheduling, promotion, demotion, laying off, transfer, discipline, and discharge for just cause. Any employee who feels that he/she has been improperly disciplined shall have the right to grieve the action taken.
- m. To establish, change, modify, interpret, or abolish the Employer's policies and procedures.
- n. To lay off employees.
- o. To authorize work to be performed by any outside person or entity as selected by the Employer. Subcontracting of work will be subject to the terms of Article 11 of this agreement.
- p. To evaluate the performance and competency of employees in their assigned work. To increase or change the content, substance, or methodology of any work assignment. Before the hospital exercises its rights under this sub paragraph P, the hospital shall provide the union with notice and opportunity to bargain over the effects of its decision.
- q. To reward and pay employees; and to determine working schedules, including allocation of and requirement of overtime. Before the hospital exercises its rights under this sub paragraph, the hospital shall provide the union with notice and opportunity to bargain over the effects of its decision.

The Employer's failure to exercise any right, prerogative or function hereby reserved to it, or the Employer's exercise of any such right, prerogative or function in a particular way, shall not be considered a waiver of the Employer's right to exercise such right, prerogative or function or preclude it from exercising the same in some other way not in conflict with the expressed provisions of this Agreement. Nothing in this article shall be construed as a waiver of the parties' rights and obligations to negotiate changes to past practices regarding mandatory subjects of bargaining.

ARTICLE 15 – TYPES OF EMPLOYEES

Overtime, benefits, seniority, schedules, and other contract terms shall be addressed in appropriate Articles of the contract.

1. Probationary Employees – Full-time employees shall be considered probationary employees during the first ninety (90) calendar days of work. Part-time employees shall be considered probationary employees during the first one hundred and fifty (150) calendar days of work. Short-hour and resource employees shall be considered probationary employees during the first 480 hours of work, but not to exceed nine (9) months. Management may extend the length of the probation on a case-by-case basis, at their discretion, not to exceed a maximum of thirty (30) days additional probation. In the event that the probation period is extended, management shall inform the employee and the union and provide the reason for the decision to extend. During this probationary period, employees may be discharged without recourse to the grievance procedure. For the purpose of this Article, employees on a four and two (4 and 2) schedule are considered full-time employees.

2. Regular Employees - A Regular Employee is one who is regularly employed to work a predetermined work schedule of twenty (20) or more hours per workweek. An employee designated as a Regular Employee shall accumulate and receive all fringe benefits as provided in this Agreement when he/she becomes, and so long as he/she remains a Regular Employee.

Types of Regular Employees:

- a. Full-Time A regular Full-time employee is one who is regularly employed to work a predetermined work schedule of thirty-six to forty (36-40) hours per week.
- b. Part-Time A regular Part-time employee is one who is regularly employed to work a predetermined work schedule of twenty to thirty-five (20-35) hours per week. For certain positions patterns of days may vary each month on the basis of unit or department need.
- 3. Any Employee who changes to a status that disqualifies them from receiving benefits shall continue to maintain past accumulated sick leave benefits, vested pension benefits, and accrued earned leave benefits to be used per hospital policy and at the discretion of the employee.
- 4. Short-Hour A Short-Hour Employee is one who is regularly scheduled to work a predetermined work schedule of less than twenty (20) hours per workweek.
- 5. Temporary A Temporary Employee is one who is hired as an interim replacement, or for temporary work on a predetermined work schedule, which does not extend beyond three (3) calendar months. This time period may be extended by mutual agreement by the parties on a case-by-case basis by no more than three (3) additional months.
- 6. Resource A Resource Employee is one who is employed to work on an intermittent basis without a predetermined work schedule. Resource staff are required as a condition of continuing employment to agree to be scheduled a minimum of six (6) "shifts" of at least 8 hours per shift each month, two (2) of which shall be weekend shifts, where there is a staffing need for their department. Individual departments may adjust the minimum requirements to four (4) 8-hour shifts per month if a specific skill is needed.

Step one in the scheduling process is that resource staff submits availability to work shifts in a given month. Step two is the Hospital establishes the monthly schedule for resource staff. Step three is the Hospital fills any holes in the monthly schedule in the inverse order of seniority in chronological order. Holes in the schedule in the following months shall continue to be filled based upon the inverse order of seniority until the seniority list is exhausted at which point the process is repeated. Employees may switch shifts with other employees with Hospital approval. Seniority for the purpose of this article is defined as job class seniority within the resource pool of the department.

Resource employees will not be eligible to receive premium pay for any shifts worked unless they have prescheduled their minimum of six (6) shifts per month, two (2) of which shall be weekend shifts, where there is a staffing need for their department. In addition, resource employees who have completed six (6) shifts, whether prescheduled or not, will be eligible to receive premium pay.

Resource staff will be scheduled to work Thanksgiving, Christmas and New Year's Day on a rotating basis.

If a resource employee fails to meet the number of shifts for which he/she has made a commitment and/or fails to offer adequate availability to the Hospital for any period of two (2) consecutive months, that employee may be removed from the roster of active employees and their employment may be terminated at the hospital's discretion.

Nursing Services Only:

Resource – a resource employee is one who is employed to work on an intermittent basis without a predetermined work schedule. Resource employees are required as a condition of continued employment to work or be scheduled to work a total of six (6) credits per month. Employees must pre-schedule as described in the scheduling process below, unless insufficient shifts are available during that time. This shall be accomplished in their primary units(s) and on their primary shift where there is a documented staff need, if such opportunities are available. If such opportunities are not available, resource employees shall receive credit for shifts worked or scheduled in any unit for which they are qualified. Credits shall be earned in the following manner:

	4-Hour Shift	8-Hour Shift	12-Hour Shift
Weekdays	0.5	1	1.5
Standby	0.5	1	1.5
Night	1	2	3
Weekend	1	2	3
Holiday	1.5	3	4.5

Nursing Services resource employees will not be eligible to receive premium pay for any shifts worked unless they have prescheduled the shifts equal to the required points required to meet their nursing services resource obligations. In addition, resource employees who have completed the shifts equal to the required points to meet their nursing services resource obligations, whether prescheduled or not, will be eligible to receive premium pay.

If a Nursing Service resource employee fails to meet the number of equal to the required points for which he/she has made a commitment and/or fails to offer adequate availability to the Hospital for any period of two (2) consecutive months, that employee may be removed from the roster of active employees and their employment may be terminated at the hospital's discretion.

The Hospital will not be arbitrary or capricious when assigning shifts to resource staff and will make reasonable efforts to accommodate education and family obligations.

A. A Resource employee who averages twenty-four (24) hours or more per week over a four (4) month period of time may exercise the option to request to be reclassified as a regular benefited employee at the lowest benefited FTE worked in any payroll period during the four (4) month period.

The following hours are not eligible in the calculation of time worked for reclassification purposes:

1. Hours worked during the employee's probationary period

- 2. Hours worked under a temporary status of any type
- 3. Hours worked while covering a regular employee's approved sick leave or leave of absence
- 4. Hours worked covering planned or unplanned absences such as illness and vacation
- 5. The first twenty-one (21) days of coverage for any vacated position in that four (4) month period.
- 6. In-service education hours; or,
- 7. Hours voluntarily traded or added by the request of either another employee or resource employee

Requests for reclassification must be made in writing to Human Resources. Human Resources will periodically (no more frequently than quarterly) review the employees continued hours worked. If at any time the employee drops down to less than 24 hours/week average in the reviewed quarter, the employee will be notified and reclassified to a resource status with no less than thirty (30) days' notice and will have to qualify again for benefits.

- 7. Utilization of Short-Hour or Resource Employees The Hospital shall not utilize Short- Hour or Resource Employees in numbers greater than necessary to maintain adequate staffing levels during periods of high patient census and for relief of Regular Employees for reasons such as vacation and illness relief and accommodating Regular Employees' work schedules.
- 8. Resource, Short-Hour and Temporary Employee Differential In lieu of eligibility for benefits, Short-Hour, Temporary, and Resource Employees shall receive a wage differential of ten percent (10%) of the rate provided for in Appendix A. Because these categories of employees (who receive 10% wage differential in lieu of benefits) are not eligible for any fringe benefits, in no event will there be any duplication of the 10% differential payment and accumulation of rights to fringe benefits.

ARTICLE 16 – SENIORITY

- 1. Job Class Seniority shall be defined by date of hire within the employee's given job classification, and then hospital-wide seniority shall be defined by date of hire at the hospital. Seniority may be adjusted by Article 33 Leave of Absence. Bargaining unit employees who are promoted to supervisory positions will maintain their previously accrued seniority but will not accrue additional seniority while in an unrepresented position. Seniority may only be used to bid on open positions. Except as otherwise provided, the principle of seniority shall govern for regular employees in the transfer, promotion, layoff, and recall of employees within the bargaining unit. Seniority shall be lost for the following reasons:
 - a. Discharge for just cause.
 - b. Voluntary resignation.
 - c. Layoff for a continued period of more than one (1) year. Failure to return to work after layoff within fourteen (14) calendar days when properly notified by the Employer by certified letter to

the employee's last address. It shall be the employee's responsibility to keep current addresses on record with the Employer.

- d. Absence in excess of one (1) year, except for industrial illness or mandatory military leave or otherwise provided by law.
- 2. Transfers/Promotions Employees shall not be eligible for transfer from one position to another position for six (6) months from employment or transfer date unless approved by the employee's current department manager. This restriction includes moving from one schedule to another in the same department for the same position. Vacancies in classifications covered by this Agreement shall be posted on the Intranet for seven (7) calendar days. Such vacancy announcement shall contain the qualifications for the job. Employees shall be entitled to submit internal applications for such jobs during the seven (7) calendar day period. Employees shall also be entitled to submit for other jobs, which may subsequently become vacant. The Hospital shall keep such requests on file for six (6) months and shall provide such information to supervisors in departments where such vacancies occur. An employee who has applied for and been granted a position shall be scheduled and transferred completely to this new position within forty-five (45) calendar days from such notification of acceptance.

In the cases of job bidding, if and when bargaining unit applicants are qualified to perform the work required, the principle of seniority shall be defined in order of job classification by date of hire within the classification, and then seniority hospital-wide.

Except as defined below:

In departments where positions have been created or titles have been changed due to a change in reporting structures, additional skills, requirements or certifications, employees shall maintain department wide seniority for the purposes of transfers/promotions or reorganizations and layoffs, so long as they are qualified to do the different job with no additional orientation or training beyond that given to a new hire. (As an example, an RRT shall maintain department seniority for his or her time as a CRT as the duties remain the same and there was a change in requirements for registration some time ago.)

Qualified bargaining unit employees that apply internally within the initial seven (7) calendar day posting period, shall be hired over outside applicants provided that the bargaining unit member has neither a final warning issued in the previous twelve (12) months from the date of application nor a written warning in the previous six (6) months from date of application.

Where two (2) or more qualified employees have submitted a request for the same job or shift, seniority shall prevail, provided that no bargaining unit member who is applying has neither a final warning issued in the previous twelve (12) months from date of application nor a written warning issued in the previous six (6) months from the date of application making them ineligible for transfer.

Where two (2) or more qualified employees have submitted a request for the same job or shift, seniority shall prevail providing, in the judgment of the Hospital, merit and ability are approximately equal. The Hospital shall not be arbitrary or capricious in the exercise of this judgment.

Seniority Tie Breaker. If employees have the same seniority date, the following tie breaker will be used to determine the seniority order:

- 1. Birth Month (oldest to be the more senior)
- 2. When two (2) more employees have same Birth Month, then Birth day will be used.

The Hospital shall respond to all employee applicants within ten (10) calendar days of the closing date of the job posting. A successful bidder shall be transferred to their new position within forty-five (45) calendar days from such notification of acceptance.

For the purposes of job bidding the job classifications of Monitor Tech and Unit Secretary will be considered one (1).

- 3. Transfer Trial Period A successful bidder will be given up to thirty-one (31) calendar days as a trial period to determine if he/she wishes to remain on the job, and the Hospital will have the same period to determine if he/she is capable to perform. Employees may be removed during the trial period. If the employee voluntarily gives up the job or is removed by the Hospital for inability to perform in the new position prior to the thirty-first (31st) day, he/she will be returned to his/her former classification and job without any loss of seniority. A written explanation will be provided to the employee, upon request by the employee. In such cases, the next senior qualified bidder will be given a trial period on the job.
- 4. Daily Staffing Adjustments When a reduction in staff is necessary, such reduction shall take place by classification, department, and shift, taking into consideration the ability to perform necessary duties: First, employees working above their master schedules receiving premium pay, then based on volunteers; then, by non-regular employees in the following order: (1) Temporary (2) Resource (3) Short-Hour; then by the least senior person scheduled to work. Variations from the foregoing, except for employees working at premium pay, shall be permitted if the employer or employee so requests and a majority of affected employees by department, unit or shift, vote in favor of a method of reducing hours that is acceptable to the employer. The Union will be called in to conduct the vote if employees so request.

In Nursing Service, Certified Nurse's Assistants and Unit Secretaries shall be maintained on a unit master schedule by classification and shift seniority.

A. (C.N.A's only) When a need is anticipated later in the shift, a C.N.A. may be placed on standby for the first portion of their shift and told to report at a specified time for the remainder of the shift. The employee being asked to go on standby will be guaranteed at least four hours of their shift and if called in call back pay will be paid for the greater of two hours or from the time the employee reports to work until the adjusted start time. Employees may only be placed on standby for the first portion of their shift twice during a two-week period. Daily staffing

adjustment language in regard to who is put on standby shall follow the formula listed in Article 4.

5. In Nursing Services except for Unit Secretaries

Prior to Start of Shift - If a reduction in staff is necessary people will be cancelled or placed on standby in the following order:

- Employees who would be reporting to work at premium pay, by inverse order of seniority
- Volunteers/OIP/OSIP
- Resource Staff
- Those scheduled into a unit not their home unit (except float)
- Those scheduled above their regular master (*) by percentage
- Those scheduled in their master work schedule by highest percentage

During Shift - If someone needs to be sent home early it is determined as follows:

- Employees working above their master schedule, by inverse order of seniority
- Volunteers
- Resource
- Those floated into a unit other than their home unit by seniority (except float)
- Those scheduled above their regular master (*) by seniority
- Those scheduled on the unit being affected, scheduled in the master work schedule by seniority

6. Procedure for Percent (%) System

House Coordinator/Charge Nurses Will:

- Oversee that percentages (%'s) are being calculated appropriately
- Calculate percent (%) for those who are absent
- Let staffing know pertinent percentages (%'s) for the on-coming shift
- Discrepancies will be dealt with appropriately

Employee Will:

- Calculate their percentage (%) when working
- Notify House Coordinator/Charge RN if a discrepancy in the percent (%) is noted

7. Percent (%) Calculation Method

Add shifts that are regular master schedule shifts on the "hours scheduled" line. The hours scheduled reflects your regular master schedule. Enter actual hours worked that shift on "hours worked" line.

At The Start of the Shift:

- Hours worked (numerator) is always the ending percentage (%) from the last day of the previous month
- Hours scheduled (denominator) is always entered as one hundred (100)

When granted an OIP/OSIP or cancelled/SB'd these hours lost are included in the calculation and percentage (%) will go DOWN.

- Record the last hours worked total in the hours worked space for that shift
- Add the hours scheduled for that day in the hours scheduled space

Any other scheduled absences from usual work (vacation, LOA, request off days, In Service days, days that were extra (*) shifts or unscheduled absences (sick, FE, etc.) are NOT used in the calculation. For these situations, the percentage (%) is frozen and carried to the next regular scheduled day. Extra shifts picked up above their regular master *'d and are NOT figured in. Do not put numbers in either space. This includes substitution days (days picked up for someone else). Exchange or swapped days are considered regular scheduled hours because they result in the same number of hours as their regular master schedule.

If percentages (%'s) are not available for some reason or if they are tied, seniority shall determine who works.

A staff person who is cancelled or placed on standby in error shall be remedied as evidenced by the lower percentage (%).

8. Classification for Float Unit Staff

Float Unit is a separate unit with its own percent (%) system. Float Unit Staff do not displace those on other units who are working their regular master but do work before someone scheduled for an extra (*) shift. Float unit staff work before someone form from another unit who could float.

When standby could be given either to a Float Unit person or someone on another unit, the Float Unit person will be put on SB and the other person will work. When sent home early, Float Unit people compare their seniority with the other people working that unit/shift.

9. Floating

All CNA's will rotate turns floating out of their home unit by date last floated. When floated out, record this in the space to the side of the percent (%) sheet. Float date is working one (1) or more hours off of your home unit.

The Unit Secretary/Aide and Certified Nursing Assistant positions shall be one classification for the purposes of seniority; said classification will be called Nursing.

Surgical services employees will only float to other surgical services departments. Surgical services includes PACU SSU, OR and WHBC.

10. Environmental Services

When reduction in staff is needed during a work shift, it will occur by seniority. Team leaders are excluded from this process.

- 11. A Regular Employee shall have the option to restore hours lost in a pay period as a result of daily/shift workforce reduction by notifying the department manager/supervisor that he/she is available to fill any unmet staffing need that does not result in overtime. Such Regular Employee shall, by seniority, on a first come first served basis be scheduled and granted work for that unfilled shift ahead of a Short Hour, Temporary or Resource Employee.
- 12. Layoff/Recall Long Term Reduction In Staff (31 Days Or More) A long term reduction in workforce which is expected to exceed thirty-one (31) days or more will occur in inverse order of bargaining unit seniority among the employee(s) within the affected classifications*, provided that the remaining employee(s) within the classification have the qualifications and experience to perform the work to be done as determined by the Hospital, according to the following order:
 - A Volunteers
 - B Resources Employees
 - C Probationary Part-Time/Full-Time Employees
 - D Regular Part-Time/Full-Time Employees

Regular full-time/part-time employees affected by the long-term reduction in work force using their bargaining unit seniority may:

- A. Fill an open position in their current classification, or any other open position, providing the employee has the qualifications and experience to perform the work.
- B. Bump the least senior bargaining unit employee in the same classification on the same shift then on any shift providing the employee has the qualifications and experience to perform in the position.
- C. Replace another employee in a position within another classification providing such otherwise laid off employee has more seniority in the other classification than the junior employee and providing the laid off employee has experience in the other classification within the past twelve (12) months. The employee must be able to perform the essential functions of the position without training, excluding orientation.

Recall - Prior to recalling laid off employees, current employees within the department will be eligible to bid on the open positions. Thereafter, laid off employees shall be recalled to their bargaining unit classification in the inverse order of layoff.

When employment is offered by verbal or written notice to an employee who has been laid off, the employee will be given forty-eight (48) hours from receipt of notice to respond and be available to work within fourteen (14) calendar days of receipt of notice or shall forfeit all recall rights. Once recalled and working, a laid off employee shall retain super-seniority right of return to his/her shift of origin for up to six (6) months.

Employees shall lose all seniority and the employment relationship shall be severed upon expiration of one (1) year, or by the refusal of a laid off employee to accept a bona fide offer of employment. Employees who are recalled will maintain their seniority minus days spent in layoff status and will be eligible for benefits pursuant to the terms of the contract and hospital policy.

It shall be the responsibility of the laid off employee to keep the hospital's Human Resources Department advised of his/her current mailing address and telephone number.

13. Restoration of Lost Hours - By seniority, Regular Employees shall have the right to restore lost hours by working unscheduled hours (unless overtime would occur) ahead of Short-Hour, Resource, and Temporary employees. By seniority, Short-Hour employees shall have the right to restore lost hours by working unscheduled hours (unless overtime would occur) ahead of Resource and Temporary employees. Such Regular and Short- Hour employees must notify their department of specific days and shifts they wish to restore by exercising their right in this paragraph. The remedy for omissions and errors in administering this paragraph shall be prospective by providing preferential treatment regardless of seniority for hours until an inequity is corrected.

The provisions of this section shall apply for the purpose of maintaining regularly scheduled hours to the extent possible.

The Hospital reserves the right to disqualify any employee who repeatedly fails on two (2) or more occasions within ninety (90) days to be available for days and shifts that they previously offered to be available to work.

For the purposes of this section, Full-Time Employees will be deemed to have agreed to a change of schedule as referred to in Article 20(7) – Hours of Employment and Overtime and, therefore, time and one-half (1 ½) shall not apply on a scheduled day off.

14. Restructure - If the Hospital wishes to undertake a departmental reorganization it will provide the Union with no less than thirty (30) days' notice and an explanation. At the Union's request, the parties will meet and discuss the decision and the departmental reorganization. When a department is reorganized, any new positions and positions with changed schedules shall be posted in their entirety including the classification, schedule, and hours. Affected employees shall then, in seniority order, choose their positions. The positions shall be posted at least seven (7) calendar days prior to the employees choosing their new positions. The parties agree that whenever a layoff or

reduction of shifts occurs, Article 16.12 shall be followed. Nothing in this paragraph waives any right an employee may otherwise be entitled to elsewhere in this Agreement.

ARTICLE 17 – JOB DESCRIPTIONS

The Employer and the Union recognize the importance of maintaining job descriptions that reflect the various skills; qualifications, duties and responsibilities associated with the job titles. Such skills, qualifications, duties, and responsibilities shall be used as the basis for determining an employee's appropriate job title and related wage rate. Copies of the descriptions shall be given to the Union upon request. The wage rates of any job in which duties and responsibilities have been materially changed shall be negotiated with the Union. The Union shall be notified of all new and/or revisions of any job descriptions.

ARTICLE 18 – WORK LOAD DISTRIBUTION

- 1. When an employee is absent for any reason and a replacement cannot be obtained, it is the intention of the Hospital to distribute his/her workload equitably among the employees in the work unit so that no undue hardship shall fall on any individual. It is further the intention of the Hospital to distribute workloads equitably among employees in both single work units and departments, and to maintain a large enough call in list so that a normal rate of absenteeism shall not impose an undue burden of extra work upon Regular Employees.
- 2. When the training of another person prevents an employee from completing tasks within a required time frame during their shift, the department supervisor will provide or arrange for needed assistance or relief to complete such tasks.

ARTICLE 19 – POSTING SCHEDULES

- 1. Schedule Posting Date Schedules of starting times and quitting times, and day off of Regular Employees, will be posted by the fifteenth (15th), except *nursing service will be posted by the twenty-second (22nd) in advance of the month, subject to emergency situations, and as much advance notice of overtime requirements will be given as permitted by operational circumstances. Once posted, the schedule, including starting and quitting times, can only be adjusted by mutual agreement. Starting and quitting times shall be posted as a set time, not a window or time range. This does not preclude management's ability to flex staff per census. Employees are responsible for checking their monthly schedules once posted.
- 2. Emergency An "emergency" for the purpose of the above paragraph is a situation in which the Hospital is obligated without advance planning to change schedules with less than twenty-four (24) hours notice. In cases of emergencies, work schedules may be adjusted, provided the employees are given reasonable notice of the change in their schedule and the Union is promptly notified by the Hospital of the reason for the change. In making changes, however, the Hospital shall give

consideration to any prior commitments of the employees. It is the employee's responsibility to keep the Hospital informed of his/her telephone number or how else he/she may be reached.

3. Employee Requests For Vacation or Other Time Off - In order for supervisors to post schedules by the fifteenth (15th) day of each month (twenty-second [22nd] for nursing service), employee requests for vacation or other time off shall be presented in writing on the prescribed form prior to the first (1st) day of the month in advance. All nursing services requests for earned leave need to be submitted in writing by the first (1st) of the month in advance.

Requests for Earned Leave will be given preference based on the date received except that two requests received on the same day shall be decided by seniority. Requests shall be granted or denied based on the Hospital's ability to adequately staff departments and will be granted if staffing levels permit. Such granting or denial shall be made in writing as soon as possible, but in no event longer than ten (10) days from the date of the request. Requests for time off will not be considered earlier than six (6) months in advance regardless of the date they are submitted. All requests submitted earlier than the first of the month preceding the sixth (6th) month in advance of the month in which the Earned Leave is requested shall be considered as being submitted on the same date. To be considered, fifty percent (50%) or more of the Earned Leave request must fall within that month which is identified for this early scheduling. When approved and scheduled, the employee must submit a time and attendance request form for Earned Leave for the pay period in which the Earned Leave will be used.

Employees will be not be required to have all of the Earned Leave time available that they are requesting at the time of approval provided that the employee seeking time off is expected to have a sufficient Earned Leave balance to cover the requested time. In addition, at the point of the requested time off the employee must have accrued the amount of time needed in order to fulfill the Earned Leave request. If insufficient Earned Leave balance exists at the point of the requested time off, the Earned Leave request will be denied.

- 4. The employee will be responsible to retain a copy of the submitted request. Supervisors will return a copy of the processed request.
- 5. Vacant Shift Sign-Up ("Holes") for Nursing Services:
 - a. Regular and Short-Hour Employees Regular and Short-Hour employees may sign up for vacant shifts ("holes") for which they are qualified through the tenth (10th) of the month limited to their home units. The employee first requesting available shifts shall be granted these shifts; however, employees shall be limited to requesting and/or being granted two (2) shifts per month from the firth fifth (5th) through the tenth (10th) of the month. Employees may request and/or be granted an unlimited number of additional available shifts from the tenth (10th) to the fifteenth (15th) of the month.

Employees desiring to fill available shifts (holes) on other nursing units for which they are qualified shall note the requested dates and shift availability of the appropriate posted whole sheets by the fifteenth (15th) of the prior month. These shifts shall be equally distributed among

all qualified employees requesting to be scheduled. Such changes and additions shall be finalized upon the posting of the schedule.

The hospital has the right, by seniority, to fill any "hole" in the schedule, whether pre-planned or unexpected at regular time prior to being obligated to fill the shift with an employee that would either be working overtime that shift or if that shift would result in overtime later in the week or pay period.

b. Resource Employees - Resource employees may then sign up for remaining vacant shifts ("holes") for which they are qualified between the sixteenth (16th) and the twentieth (20th) of the month. It is the Resource employee's responsibility to schedule their required minimum number of shifts by no later than the twentieth (20th) of the preceding month. Such changes and additions shall be finalized upon the posting of the schedule.

Resource employees will not be eligible to receive premium pay for any shifts worked unless they have prescheduled their shifts.

Resource staff will be scheduled to work Thanksgiving, Christmas and New Year's day on a rotating basis.

*For the purpose of this article nursing services will be described as Critical Care Unit (CCU), Short Stay Unit (SSU), Endoscopy (ENDO), Pre-Admissions Testing (PAT), Progressive Care Unit (PCU), Post Anesthesia Care Unit (PACU), Medical Care Unit (MCU), Operating Room (OR), Surgical Care Unit (SCU), Emergency Department (ED), Women's Health Birth & Children's Center (WHBCC), Cath Lab, Float Unit and Resource.

6. Cross-Trained Unit Secretaries/Certified Nursing Assistants - Cross-trained Unit Secretary/Certified Nursing Assistant shall be able to account for time worked in the CNA role when scheduled for a shift as a Unit Secretary. Employees shall register in Kronos under the Unit Secretary pay code but may be asked to perform tasks within the CNA job description. In order to monitor time worked performing CNA tasks when clocked into Kronos under the Unit Secretary pay code, an additional code for tracking purposes only shall be built into the Kronos system. Unit Secretaries/CNA's shall be responsible for submitting an exception form on a daily basis citing time spent performing CNA tasks. The Charge Nurse or PCC must validate the exception form. Nurse Managers or their designee shall enter the verified time into the "tracking only" code in Kronos on a daily basis.

ARTICLE 20 – HOURS OF EMPLOYMENT AND OVERTIME

1. The Hospital has the right to establish any seven (7) days as workweek. The workweek is currently 12:01 am Sunday to midnight Saturday. "Payroll Day" as referred to in this Article shall mean and consist of the twenty-four (24) hour period beginning at the time the employee commences work.

A normal shift shall consist of eight (8) consecutive hours to twelve (12) consecutive hours, excluding any unpaid meal period included in that shift. Part-time shift hours are prorated based on full-time equivalency (FTE).

The employer shall have the discretion to schedule employees to three (3) twelve-hour (12) shifts per week, including three (3) paid fifteen (15) minute breaks and one half hour unpaid lunch period in each 12-hour shift. In the application of the following provisions the hospital will adhere to all State and Federal overtime laws.

- 2. Employees shall be paid at the rate of one and one-half (1 ½) times the straight time hourly rate, including shift differential, for all hours of work performed in excess of forty (40) hours in one workweek or hours in excess of the employee's assigned shift duration (8 hours, 10 hours, 12 hours) in any 24-hour period. Workers assigned to work three (3) twelve-hour (12) shifts per week, shall be paid at the rate of one and one-half (1.5) times the straight time hourly rate, including shift differential, for all hours worked more than 36 unless an executed written waiver of overtime by mutual agreement exists. Hours more than the employee's assigned shift duration (8-hour, 10-hour 12-hour) in a payroll day that results from a change of shift starting time requested by the employee shall not be considered overtime.
- 3. Any change of shift initiated by the Hospital shall provide at least twelve (12) hours of off duty time between shifts or the payment of time and one-half (1 ½) for all hours worked on that shift. For the purposes of this provision, Standby hours will count as off duty time. If an employee on standby is called to work, the hours worked will not count as off duty time.
- 4. The Hospital shall exercise its efforts in good faith, subject to the requirements of efficient operations, to provide as many full-time employees as possible in this section with work schedules of thirty-six (36) to forty (40) hours per week followed by two (2) consecutive days of rest.
- 5. The Hospital at its discretion and with the consent of the affected employee may permanently increase or decrease the scheduled hours per week of an established regular or short hour position by no more than one eight (8) hour shift per week. This alteration of position shall not occur more than one time per year. The change of the position shall not constitute a vacancy under this section.
 - In the interest of maintaining mutually satisfactory work schedules, employees or employee and Union representatives may confer with department managers from time to time to explore mutually satisfactory improvements in work schedules. However, it is understood and agreed that the final right to establish work schedules rests exclusively with the Hospital.
- 6. Overtime will be paid for work in excess of five (5) days in a row at Premium rate of time and one-half (1 ½). Self-scheduled voluntary in-services and/or staff meetings shall not be considered time worked under this provision. Four (4) hours worked constitutes a day worked. Full-time employees requested to work on a regularly scheduled day off shall be paid at the rate of one and one-half (1 ½) times their regular rate of pay for work performed on such days, except where there is a change of schedule agreed upon between the Hospital and the employee, or the employee requested to work the day off.
- 7. Where various overtime calculations might apply, the Hospital shall apply the method that provides the highest payment. Nothing herein limits payment of daily overtime worked in excess of the employee's regularly assigned shift duration within any given workday. It is understood that time

- and one-half (1 $\frac{1}{2}$) on a sixth (6th) consecutive day shall not apply in cases of ongoing regular schedules within a department or shift when the sixth (6th) consecutive day occurs as a feature of such ongoing schedule.
- 8. There shall be no duplication or pyramiding of overtime pay under this or any other provision of this Agreement.
- 9. It is the Hospital's intent to provide new employees with orientation that is adequate and that will vary in length based upon the needs of the job.
- 10. When an employee has been called back to work during the eight (8) hour period immediately preceding a scheduled shift, the Hospital will provide a requested rest period and/or adjusted work schedule whenever possible.
- 11. Operating Room Work in Excess of Sixteen (16) out of twenty-four (24) Hours Every effort will be made to accommodate a request from a Surgical Technologist or Surgical Support Aide to be replaced for a scheduled shift, which begins within a twenty-four (24) hour period during which they have already worked sixteen (16) or more hours.

ARTICLE 21 – REST PERIOD DAILY

- 1. The Hospital shall authorize and encourage all employees to take rest periods daily which, insofar as practicable, shall be in the middle of each work period. Rest periods shall be computed based on fifteen (15) minutes for four (4) hours working time, or a major fraction thereof. No wage deduction shall be made for such rest periods and the Hospital shall authorize and encourage all employees to leave the immediate work area insofar as practicable.
- 2. A thirty (30) minute meal break shall be allowed. The intent of the parties is to allow employees an uninterrupted meal period. If an employee is called back to work during their meal for an emergency, that employee will be allowed his/her meal period at another time during that shift. If this is not possible, the employee will be paid at a rate of time and one-half (1 ½) of the applicable rate for the time worked in excess of one (1) hour past the middle of the shift without a meal period until a meal period is obtained, providing that the supervisor or house coordinator is notified at least forty-five (45) minutes prior to the completion of one (1) hour past the middle of the shift and a supervisor or house coordinator signs the Kronos exception form prior to the completion of the pay period. One (1) hour past the middle of the shift shall be five (5) hours for eight (8) hour shifts, six (6) hours for ten (10) hour shifts and seven (7) hours for twelve (12) hour shifts. Upon mutual agreement between the employee and the supervisor, this provision may be extended up to two (2) hours past the middle of the shift. This provision shall not apply to the Operating Room and the Cardio Vascular Operating Room. At the end of his/her shift, an OR/CVOR employee will document when he/she was unable to take his/her meal period and shall receive premium pay for that time. A meal period will not be required for employees who work four (4) hours or less.

ARTICLE 22 – PAY DAY

- 1. The Hospital shall pay employees every two (2) weeks and shall comply with wage and hour requirements in handling payroll matters. If the Hospital changes its payroll process, employees will be given sixty (60) calendar days' notice of such change and will notify the Union.
- 2. Paycheck Detail Printout An employee may request in writing a timeline detail and a key with wage and hour data relating to the calculations on their paycheck. Such requests will need to be renewed at the beginning of each quarter (January 1, April 1, July 1 and October 1). A printout will be distributed along with the employee's paycheck. A copy of their Kronos timecard may be requested from the department manager at any time.

ARTICLE 23 – WAGE RATES

- 1. The minimum and maximum straight time hourly rates of pay shall be as shown in Appendix A.
- 2. It shall be understood that no employee shall suffer any wage reduction, loss of benefits, or any other condition that they presently enjoy by the signing of this Agreement.
- 3. If there are significant new duties assigned to a specific job classification during the life of the Agreement, such changes will be reviewed by the Hospital to determine whether the job should be reclassified. If a change in classification is indicated, the parties will meet and confer over the proposed change. If a new position is established, the Hospital will negotiate the wage rate for this position with the Union.
- 4. When hiring a new employee and assigning a wage rate, the wage rates of existing employees will be taken into consideration.
- 5. There will be three percent (3%) between Steps 1 to 8 and three and one-half (3.5%) between Steps 9-14. All employees shall continue to advance through the steps of the wage scale annually on the employee's anniversary date.
- 6. The wage rates will be increased by four and one-half percent (4.5%) effective with the first full pay period after ratification of the agreement.
- 7. The wage rates will be increased by three percent (3%) effective with the first full pay period following the first anniversary of the agreement.
- 8. The wage rates will be increased by three percent (3%) effective with the first full pay period following the second anniversary of the agreement.
- 9. Effective with the first pay period following ratification of this agreement, the wage scales will be adjusted by a market rate adjustment for the following job classifications in the following percentages:

CNA II	10%
OB Tech	8%
OR Custodian	5%
Phlebotomist	3%
Surgical Tech Certified	5%
Pharmacy Tech	5%
Sterile Processing Tech	3%

After the other market adjustments as specified above are made to the wages in the wage structure, Step 1 of the wage scale for C.N.A. II employees will be increased to match the step amount listed in Step 2 of that wage range. This adjustment will result in identical the step amounts appearing in Step 1 and Step 2 for that job classification. No other changes to the steps will occur for any classification.

- 10. After twenty (20) years of service at MWMC, an employee will be eligible to move to a new Step 15, which will be three- and one-half percent (3.5%) above the current Step 14 for each position.
- 11. Ratification Bonus: Effective the first payroll period after ratification, regular fulltime employees will receive a ratification bonus of \$300, minus relevant wage withholdings required by law. Regular Part time and Per Diem employees will receive a prorated bonus, based on their FTE.

ARTICLE 24 – RECOGNITION OF PRIOR EXPERIENCE

The wage rate for new employees covered under this Agreement will provide credit for years of experience in the same or related job classification as determined by the Hospital as follows: Years of prior experience in the same or related job classification acquired either in hospitals currently accredited by the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Hospitals or comparable experience acquired as a member of the armed forces, sometimes referred to by the parties in the administration of this Agreement as "direct experience," shall be credited as follows:

Years of Service/Experience	Step
0-2	1
2-4	2
4-6	3
6-8	4
8-10	5
10-12	6
12-14	7
14-16	8
16+	9

Years of prior experience in the same classification acquired in any workplace other than a hospital currently accredited by the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Hospitals shall be reduced by 50% and then applied to the table above.

Wage levels credited on experience shall be reviewed with the new employee at the time of hire and the new employee shall be given a copy of the Personnel Action Form (PAF) at the employee's request. Such credit shall commence on the date satisfactory proof is provided by the new employee of such prior experience.

Nursing Assistant experience acquired at hospitals currently accredited by the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Hospitals outside of Oregon will be considered equivalent to CNA II experience for the purposes of this article.

ARTICLE 25 – DIFFERENTIALS

Shift differential pay shall be included in vacation, sick leave, holiday pay and overtime hours worked. Employees who work or are scheduled to work an evening or night of less than six (6) hours and due to low census leave work will receive the applicable evening, night, or weekend shift differential.

- a. Evening Shift Differential All employees working a shift of six (6) or more hours beginning at or after twelve (12) noon or ending at or after six (6) p.m. shall receive evening shift differential of nine percent (9%) of Appendix A Wage Schedule Step 1 of their job class.
- Night Shift Differential Employees who work a shift of six (6) or more hours between 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. shall receive night shift differential payment of thirteen (13%) of Appendix A Wage Schedule Step 1 of their job class.
- c. Longevity Night Shift Differential Any employee who qualifies for night shift differential as noted above shall be paid twenty-two (22%) of Appendix A Wage Schedule Step 1 of their job class for all night shifts worked, after completing twelve (12) continuous months on the night shift.
- d. Certified First Assistant Differential One dollar (\$1.00) per hour for all hours worked for employees who achieve and maintain the national certification of Certified First Assist.
- e. Weekend Differential Employees whose work shift begins during a weekend, defined as the calendar days of Saturday and Sunday, shall receive one dollar and fifty cents (\$1.50) per hour worked in addition to the employee's regular rate of pay. For example, an employee whose shift starts at 2300 Friday night is not eligible for weekend differential. An employee who begins a shift at 2300 Sunday night would qualify.
- f. Preceptor Pay It is every employee's responsibility to participate in orienting a new employee. Preceptor Pay will be paid for training of new employee and/or new job class only. Preceptors will be a management assignment. Preceptors must be certified by attending the hospital's preceptor training program through the Staff Development Department. The Hospital will offer bargaining unit employees preceptor training at least three (3) times per calendar year, provided that a minimum of three (3) bargaining unit employees have committed to and are

- present at such training sessions. Preceptor pay will be paid at an additional one dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) per hour.
- g. Lead/Charge Pay- Employees operating as leads will be paid a one dollar and fifty cent (\$1.50) per hour differential while in the lead position, employees operating in the position of charge will be paid two dollars (\$2.00) per hour extra as a differential. Relief charge duties shall be compensated at two dollars (\$2.00) per hour as a differential.

ARTICLE 26 - REPORTING PAY

- 1. No employee except standby employees shall be called to work for less than four (4) hours. Any employee requested to report for work and not put to work shall receive four (4) hours pay.
- 2. In cases of unusual requirements of work needed to be performed on a regular basis, such work may be scheduled at less than a four (4) hour shift.
- 3. The provisions of this section shall not apply if the lack of work is not within the control of the Hospital, and if the Hospital makes a reasonable effort to notify the employee by telephone not to report to work at least two (2) hours before the scheduled time to work. It is the employee's responsibility to keep the Hospital informed of any change of address or telephone number. Failure to do so relieves the Hospital of the notification requirement.
- 4. Employees requested to work after their scheduled shift has been canceled will receive time and one-half (1 ½) for a minimum of two (2) hours.

ARTICLE 27 – STANDBY PAY

- 1. The rate of standby/holiday standby pay will be consistent throughout the hospital. Standby pay shall not be provided if standby status is canceled prior to the start of the standby period.
- 2. Standby Rate The Hospital will pay forty-two dollars (\$42.00) for each eight (8) hour shift of standby, fifty two dollars and fifty cents (\$52.50) for each ten (10) hour shift, sixty three dollars (\$63.00) for each twelve (12) hour shift of standby.
- 3. Standby Holiday Rate The Hospital will pay sixty-three dollars (\$63.00) for each eight (8) hour shift of standby for a Holiday.
- 4. Extended Standby:
 - For Cath Lab Technologists, Nuclear Medicine Technologists, MRI Technologists, Endo Technologists, Interventional Radiology Techs, CT Technologists and Ultrasound Technologists on assigned extended first call standby for more than sixty four (64) hours in a four week schedule cycle which correlates with the scheduled pay cycles shall receive time and one half (1 ½) times the standby rate for all scheduled first call standby hours in excess of sixty- four (64). Additional hours of first call

extended standby that an employee requests or voluntarily accepts from a co-worker do not qualify for the time and one-half (1 $\frac{1}{2}$) standby pay rate.

- 5. Call Back Pay and Travel Time The Hospital will pay a minimum of two (2) hours at time and one-half (1 ½) for each call back up to a maximum of three (3) times in an eight (8) hour shift with thirty (30) minutes of travel time at time and one-half (1 ½) per each call back.
- 6. Subsequent Call Backs Subsequent call backs past the maximum of three (3) times will be paid at time and one-half (1 ½) for all actual hours worked.
- 7. Call Back Time Employees called back when off duty receives the appropriate rate of pay based on work day and work period overtime requirements with a four (4) hour minimum if straight time, and a two (2) hour minimum if time and one-half (1 ½).
- 8. Women's Health and Birth in-house overnight assignment. OB Techs or OR Techs may be assigned to remain in-house on-call for the Women's Health and Birth Center. All such hours will be considered as time worked and shall be compensated at the existing minimum wage rate plus standby pay. The tech shall not be required to perform any duties unless notified that the tech is being required to report for the normal assignment, in which case the tech shall be treated as a Tech called in from standby status and shall be entitled to standby premium compensation. Sleeping facilities will be available. OB/OR Techs working above their master schedule and who worked the shift before or the shift after the current standby shift, will not be required to float to another department without their consent

ARTICLE 28 – WORK IN A HIGHER CLASSIFICATION

Any employee who performs work in a higher classification for two (2) hours or more (except for rest periods and meal relief), shall be paid at a rate based on the time worked in each classification. The employee's rate of pay for such hours worked shall be at the same step in the higher classification.

ARTICLE 29 – CHANGE OF CLASSIFICATION

An employee who is permanently promoted to a job in a higher classification shall be paid in his/her new classification. A wage increase of at least sixty-five cents (\$.65) per hour or the top of the step of the new range whichever is less.

An employee who is transferred to a position in a classification with a lower wage scale shall be placed in the same step in their new classification that the employee currently holds.

ARTICLE 30 – EARNED LEAVE

- 1. General Earned Leave is the Hospital's method of providing scheduled paid time off for eligible employees to meet their need for absence from work. Earned leave is a consolidation of, Sick Leaves, Holidays, and Vacation.
- 2. Eligibility All Employees working an average of twenty (20) hours per week over a calendar quarter become eligible to accrue Earned Leave on a pro rate basis.
- 3. Accrual Pro Rate Formula Earned Leave is accrued on a pro rate basis each pay period based on the following fraction: Actual hours compensated divided by two thousand eighty (2080) hours. Actual hours compensated means hours worked and paid benefit hours.
- 4. Accrual Rates Eligible employees shall accrue Earned Leave as follows:

	No. of	No. Of	Hours Per
	Years	Days	Compensable Hour
1st through 12th month	0 - 1	23	.08846
13th through 36th month	1 - 3	27	.10385
37th through 84th month	3 - 7	31	.11923
85th through 144th month	7 - 12	35	.13462
145th month to 180 month	12 – 15	39	.15000
181st month and on	15 and up	40	.15385

Accrual Maximum - Employees may accrue up to a maximum of two (2) years full time accrual of Earned Leave (2-x display of days in this section). All accrued days in excess of this limit shall be paid directly to the employee or upon request shall be deposited in the employee's extended illness bank.

Cash Out - An employee may elect to cash out up to eighty (80) hours of their projected calendar year accrual of earned leave at one hundred percent (100%), subject to the following terms and conditions:

- a. A balance of forty (40) hours must be retained in the employee's earned leave bank.
- b. The election must be made during the month of October for earned leave to be accrued in the upcoming calendar year.
- c. Employee must designate when they wish to receive their earned leave cash out during the upcoming year at the time of open enrollment.
- d. The election is irrevocable.
- e. An employee who does not declare such an election and later decides to cash out earned leave shall be cashed out at eighty-five percent (85%).

5. Use of Earned Leave - Earned Leave may be used as soon as it is earned in accordance with the provision of this section, except that time off for vacation purposes may not be taken until successful completion of six (6) months of service.

Timelines for Requests - Requests for scheduled Earned Leave including Birthday holiday must be submitted to the Supervisor by the first (1st) of the month preceding the month in which the Earned Leave is requested. Requests for Earned Leave will be given preference based on the date received except that two (2) requests received on the same day shall be decided by seniority. Requests shall be granted or denied based on the Hospital's ability to adequately staff departments and will be granted if staffing levels permit. Such granting or denial shall be made in writing as soon as possible, but in no event longer than ten (10) days from the date of the request. Requests for time off will not be considered earlier than six (6) months in advance regardless of the date they are submitted. All requests submitted earlier than the first of the month preceding the sixth month in advance of the month in which the Earned Leave is requested shall be considered as being submitted on the same date. To be considered, fifty percent (50%) or more of the Earned Leave request must fall within that month which is being identified for this early scheduling. When approved and scheduled, the hours will be entered into the time and attendance system as Earned Leave for the pay period in which the Earned Leave will be used.

Employees will not be required to have all the Earned Leave time available that they are requesting at the time of approval provided that the employee seeking time off is expected to have a sufficient Earned Leave balance to cover the requested time. In addition, at the point of the requested time off the employee must have accrued the amount of time needed to fulfill the Earned Leave request. If an insufficient Earned Leave balance exists at the point of the requested time off, the Earned Leave will be denied.

Requests for scheduled Earned Leave submitted after the first (1st) of the month for reasons the employee was unable to anticipate prior to the first (1st) of the month shall be considered on their merits and upon the Hospital's ability to adequately staff departments.

Requests For Unscheduled Earned Leave - (absences initiated on a day the employee is scheduled to work) should be made only for employee illness or injury, or an emergency situation beyond the employee's control. Employee making such request may be required to provide proof of inability to report to work. Provision of a doctor's note may be taken into account in the application of the attendance policy. Such request should be made as soon as the employee becomes aware of the problem or at least two (2) hours before the shift starts, if possible. Employees are cautioned to use this form of Earned Leave in strict conformance with these guidelines, as improper use of unscheduled Earned Leave is cause for progressive discipline including discharge. Accrued Earned Leave must be used in the above situations. It is not required that Earned Leave be used for requests granted two (2) hours prior to the start of a shift ("off if possible"). Accrued Earned Leave must be used in the above situations when an employee is in corrective action for attendance.

Requests for unpaid time off will be considered at the time the monthly schedule is made out after requests for Earned Leave and requests for time off for short-hour employees without benefits have been satisfied. Short-Hour employees not on benefits may be granted unpaid vacation of up to thirty (30) calendar days each year.

In order to assure that employees receive the vacation intended by this provision, full-time employees will be encouraged to take a minimum of ten (10) days of Earned Leave each year in the form of vacation. The Hospital recognizes the need for regular employees to take a vacation each year, and where possible, to receive approval for time off during periods that best serve the needs of the employee's family.

Employee's Birthday - An employee's birthday shall be granted off if requested as outlined above. If this request cannot be accommodated by the Hospital all hours worked on the employee's birthday shall be paid at time and one-half (1 $\frac{1}{2}$) the employees base rate of pay. If able to grant, the employee may take leave without pay or use earned leave.

Employees may utilize Earned Leave to supplement Workers' Compensation up to the amount of pay received from regularly scheduled hours of work.

Employees may routinely use Earned Leave to replace pay shortages resulting from a canceled or reduced shift of work.

Notice of Termination and Cash Out Eligibility - A minimum of fourteen (14) calendar days advance notice of termination is required to be eligible to receive pay for up to seventy-two (72) days of accrued and unused Earned Leave. Employees terminating with less than one (1) year of service and a minimum of fourteen (14) days advance notice shall be eligible to receive pay for fifty percent (50%) of accrued and unused Earned Leave. Earned Leave cannot be used during the termination notice period.

Earned Leave shall not be forfeited if the employee is unable to work the notice period due to medical disability or if there is mutual agreement between the Hospital and the employee on a reduced period of notice.

An employee shall have the option to use twenty (20) hours per week of Earned Leave to maintain their health benefits package up to ninety (90) days for a medical or parental leave of absence.

6. Affect of Holidays - If an employee is scheduled or requested by the Hospital to work on any of the following holidays, he/she shall be paid time and one-half (11/2) for hours worked on such holidays. Holiday pay shall be paid for any employee checking into the facility between 10:53 pm on the night before the holiday to 10:52 pm on the day of the holiday.

New Years Day
Memorial Day
Independence Day
Labor Day
Thanksgiving Day
Christmas Day

The Hospital schedules time off for Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day and New Year Days on a rotating basis.

7. Extended Illness Bank - Accrued but unused Sick Leave benefits will constitute an Extended Illness Bank for employees with such accrued hours on the date of implementation of this benefit and discontinuance of Sick Leave accrual. Extended Illness Bank hours may be used starting with the first (1st) scheduled workday the employee is absent due to employee hospitalization, and starting with the third (3rd) scheduled work day that the employee is absent due to employee hospitalization, and starting with the third (3rd) scheduled work day that the employee is absent due to non-hospitalized employee illness or injury.

Extended Illness Bank hours may not be used during periods of Earned Leave. Except for use of Sick Leave as described in "1" above, employees have no vested interest in accumulated Sick Leave.

- 8. In respect for their service, any employee who is a veteran of the US armed services may request Veterans Day off in accordance with Article 20. If this request cannot be accommodated by the Hospital, all hours worked on Veterans Day shall be paid at time and one-half (1 ½) the employees base rate of pay. If able to grant, the employee may take leave without pay or use earned leave.
- 9. Employees shall be permitted to donate Earned Leave they have accrued, in an amount of no more than 24 hours in any 12-month period, to other bargaining unit members who have completed at least one year of employment at the Hospital, are regularly scheduled to work at least 32 hours per week, are on an approved leave and have exhausted all of his or her own Earned Leave.

The maximum amount of donated Earned Leave that any employee may receive in any 12-month period is 120 hours. Donated Earned Leave will be treated as wages and income to the employee recipient and will be paid at the recipient's base rate.

In the event more hours have been donated to any employee on leave than he or she needs or if the leave recipient's employment is terminated for any reason, any remaining donated hours shall be returned to the donor(s) on a pro-rate basis utilizing the same ratio of each donor's hours to the total number of hours donated to the recipient. No employee shall have more hours returned than he or she donated.

Employees wishing to donate Earned Leave will complete an Employee Activity Request indicating the name of the individual that he or she wishes to receive the donation and the number of hours to be donated.

* For the purpose of this article nursing services will be described as Critical Care Unit (CCU), Short Stay Unit (SSU), Endoscopy (ENDO), Pre-Admissions Testing (PAT), Progressive Care Unit (PCU), Post Anesthesia Care Unit (PACU), Medical Care Unit (MCU), Operating Room (OR), Surgical Care Unit (SCU), Emergency Department (ED) Women's Health Birth & Children's Center (WHBCC), Cath Lab, Float Unit and Resource.

ARTICLE 31 – BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

A Regular Employee who has a death in the family will be granted time off as follows: Up to three (3) working days in a two week pay period, as required will be granted with pay to any of such days which fall on such employee's regular workdays to attend the bereavement of parents, spouse, children, sister, brother, mother-in-law, father-in-law, spousal equivalent, step-parents, stepchildren, grandparents, or grandchildren, and other relatives residing in the same household as the employee. Employees will be required to present documents verifying the need for bereavement leave within fourteen (14) days of returning from such leave. Acceptable documents include, but are not limited to, death announcements, obituaries, letters or email from a funeral home, employee or faith community and death certificates.

Bereavement leave will be allowed for Brothers-In-Law and Sisters-In-Law without bereavement leave pay. An employee shall not be entitled to both Bereavement Leave Pay and Earned Leave Pay for the same day.

ARTICLE 32 – JURY DUTY

A regular employee called for jury service will be excused from work on days which he/she serves and shall receive for each day of jury service, the difference between his/her regular straight time day's pay and the amount of jury pay. The employee must show proof of request to serve on jury duty within two (2) working days of receiving written request for possible service by the court. The employee must show proof of jury service and the amount of jury pay. The Employee must report for work if four (4) or more hours of his/her shift remain at the end of jury duty service for the day, unless jury service was a complete day. Employees on jury duty shall be considered for day shift or if jury duty falls on a scheduled day off, it shall be considered a workday and the employee will be scheduled a replacement day off. Employees selected for grand jury duty shall be scheduled for day shift Monday- Friday.

ARTICLE 33 – LEAVE OF ABSENCE

1. Protected Types of Leaves - The Employer shall grant employees leave of absence in accordance with applicable state and/or federal law. Protected leaves include Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA), Oregon Family Leave Act (OFLA), Victims of Certain Crimes Leave Act, Military Leave, Spouse Military Leave (Oregon Military Family Leave Act) and Workers' Compensation.

For employees eligible for leave under OFLA and/or FMLA, the employee shall be granted leave on the advice of a qualified physician, and the duration of such leave shall be determined based on medical need. The Employer will administer leaves of absence and maintain policies in accordance with applicable state and federal law.

When the Oregon Paid Family and Medical Leave Insurance (PFMLI) program becomes active, employees receiving PFMLI shall be given the option of whether to use Paid Time Off or unpaid leave.

- 2. Personal Leaves: Employees with at least twelve (12) months of service contiguous to such request may request a leave of absence for a period of up to an aggregate total of twelve (12) months including protected leave or a paid personal leave. Such requests may be granted at the sole discretion of the Department Manager or his/her designee.
- 3. Additional Types of Leaves:
 - a. Education Leave work related
 - b. Union Leave Subject to the employer's work unit requirements, Union members may be granted leave to perform work for the Union, not to exceed three (3) months. Such leave requests shall not be unreasonably denied. More than one employee on such leave cannot be absent from the same unit with a maximum of two (2) employees' hospital wide out on union leave at the same time. The employee shall be permitted during such absence to take time off without pay however benefits will exhaust at the end of the month in which the unpaid union leave begins. Upon returning from Union leave, the employee shall be returned to his or her former position and their seniority date will be adjusted by the total number of unpaid union leave days.
- 4. Denial of Education, Union, and Personal Leaves Request for leave may be denied for the following reasons:
 - a. Inability to maintain proper staffing levels
 - b. Inability to obtain qualified replacement
 - c. Inadequate notice of intent to take leave
 - d. Repeated use of leave of absence
- 5. Notice and Duration of Leave Except in situations in which it is unreasonable to expect an employee to anticipate, employees must submit their request for personal or educational leave to the Hospital three (3) months in advance of such leave. Except in situations in which it is unreasonable to expect an employee to anticipate, employees must submit their request for Union leave one (1) month in advance of such leave. A definite return date must be agreed upon prior to the start of such leave unless circumstances make such commitment impossible, in which case, if possible, employees must give at least thirty (30) calendar days advance notice of return. When thirty (30) days advance notice is not possible, employee must keep Human Resources informed of any medical progress and anticipated date of return.
- 6. Accrual Reinstatement Rights and Limitations Employees returning from a protected leave of twelve (12) weeks or less, shall return to their former position.
 - a. Employees returning from a leave in excess of twelve (12) weeks shall be eligible to apply for an internal position(s) for which he/she is qualified and shall be considered an internal candidate for job postings purposes and be given preference to equally qualified outside candidates.

- b. Employees returning from an approved personal or educational leave of six (6) weeks or less, shall return to their former position.
- c. Employees returning from an approved personal or educational leave in excess of six (6) weeks shall be eligible to apply for an internal position(s) for which he/she is qualified and shall be considered an internal candidate for job posting purposes.
- 7. The accrual or payment of all benefits and the accrual of seniority shall cease at the start of such leaves not protected by State and/or Federal leave law. Benefits and seniority accumulated prior to such leave shall not be forfeited. Employees on protected leave must pay the required premiums for group insurance in order for such coverage to continue during the leave.

ARTICLE 34 – EDUCATION

The Education Committee agrees to meet within 60 days of ratification to determine parameters of use.

- 1. Tuition Reimbursement Program The Hospital agrees to continue the tuition reimbursement program for all eligible employees for the duration of this Agreement. The Hospital will provide the Union thirty (30) days' notice of any substantial reduction in the program and agrees that, upon request, it shall bargain the effects of such a reduction. Once tuition reimbursement program applications have been approved, the conditions of the tuition reimbursement program will not be reduced for an individual employee as long as they adhere to the procedures of the program.
- 2. Education The parties agree that education is a very important part of our professional lives, particularly in the health care field. In recognition of this, the Hospital provides continuing education opportunities for bargaining unit employees within the budgetary process. Interested employees may contact an SEIU Steward or their department manager for specific information of programs and how to apply for educational funds.

Service Employees International Union, Local 49 and McKenzie-Willamette Medical Center hereby agree to the following for continuing education for SEIU bargaining unit members:

For this contract period the Hospital agrees to provide a minimum of forty thousand (\$40,000) per year in continuing education for SEIU bargaining unit members. At the Hospital's discretion, this amount may be increased during the duration of this Agreement. The Hospital agrees to continue the practice of continuing education days for employees who are attending authorized training. Effective January 1, 2008, SEIU bargaining unit members shall appoint up to three (3) members, (two of which are representatives of the ancillary clinical departments) and the Hospital will appoint up to two (2) members to serve on an Education Committee ("Committee"). The Committee will establish criteria by which education requests will be evaluated and funds allocated. The Committee will meet at least quarterly and will allocate this continuing education fund. Committee members will be paid at straight time up to two (2) hours of time spent in committee work each quarter. If the committee fails to act upon a request for education leave within two (2) weeks of receipt of such

request, then the appropriate Senior Executive and SEIU committee member shall be requested to act upon it.

Employees who want to utilize continuing education funds must complete a continuing education fund request form and give it to the Committee for approval. The Committee shall document monies spent, programs attended and the participants.

ARTICLE 35 – HEALTH AND WELFARE

1. Health Insurance. The Hospital shall provide the Employees with the health insurance benefits (including Medical, Dental and Vision) set forth in the Quorum Health Corporation Flexible Benefits Plan. A copy of which is available online at the employee benefit portal and in Human Resources.

Medical, Dental and Vision shall be as negotiated per contract guidelines and copies of which are available online at the employee benefit portal and in Human Resources. Employee rates of contribution for each year of this Agreement can be found in Appendix D.

The rates for the duration of the contract will be increased as follows:

	Medical- Both plans	Dental	Vision
2022	No increase	No increase	No increase
2023	5%	3%	3%
2024	5%	No increase	3%

The parties agree that there will be no removal of current plan design changes in 2022.

2. Retirement – The Hospital shall provide the Employees with the Hospital's 401K Retirement Savings Plan, a copy of which is available online at the employee benefit portal and in Human Resources. At the discretion of the employer, discretionary matching funds may be made annually to participants in the Plan. Matching rates for 2021/2022/2023/2024 funds are as follows:

First 1% contributed by employee Matched at 100% 2% -6% contributed by employee Matched at 50% Maximum Match Amount 3.5%

- 3. Group Life Insurance The Hospital shall provide the Employees with the Group Life Insurance and Accidental Death and Dismemberment Benefits set forth in the Quorum Health Corporation flexible benefits plan. A copy of which is available online at the employee benefit portal and in human resources.
- 4. Disability Insurance The Hospital shall provide the Employees with the Disability Insurance Benefits set forth in the Quorum Health Corporation flexible benefit plan, a copy of which is available online at the employee benefit portal and in Human Resources.

- 5. Health Care Subsidy For those regular or part-time employees scheduled to work thirty (30) or more hours per week and earning less than forty-five thousand dollars (\$45,000) per year, and those part-time employees scheduled to work twenty (20) to twenty-nine (29) hours per week and earning less than forty thousand dollars (\$40,000) per year, the Hospital agrees to pay one hundred percent (100%) of the employee premium or an additional fifty dollars (\$50.00) per month for the employee plus children or spouse premium, or an additional one hundred dollars (\$100) per month for the employee and family premium depending on which coverage the employee elects.
- 6. Change in Health Plan: In the event the Hospital determines during the term of this Agreement to terminate and/or modify any plan by virtue of which any of the "Health and Welfare" benefits described in this article are provided to the employees covered by this Agreement, including but not limited to, any modification of contribution rates, or the identity of the insurance provider, and such termination and/or modification is applicable to all individuals employed by the Hospital who are covered by the plan(s) subject to the termination and/or modification, as the case may be (the "other individuals"), such termination and/or modification shall be automatically applied to the employees contemporaneously with the other individuals (referred to hereafter in this Article as a "Plan Change"), subject to the following:

The Hospital agrees that, in the event any such Plan Change involves the termination of a plan, the termination would be undertaken in order to, by way of example only, facilitate or maintain compliance with applicable law [including without limitation, the Internal Revenue Code (the "Code"), the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 ("ERISA") and the Public Health Safety Act ("PHSA") and any regulations or other formal guidance issued under the Code, ERISA or the PHSA], or to provide comparable benefits for employees and other individuals through a different plan.

The Hospital shall provide the Union with at least thirty (30) consecutive calendar days written notice in advance of the effective date of any such Plan Change (the "Waiting Period"), which written notice shall specify the effective date of the Plan Change (referred to hereafter in this Article as a "Hospital Notice of Plan Change"). Thereafter, during the first ten (10) consecutive calendar days of the Waiting Period, the Union shall have the right to serve the Hospital with a written request for discussion about the Plan Change (referred to hereafter in this Article as a "Union Request for Discussion"). In the event the Union serves such a Union Request for Discussion, the Parties shall meet promptly and discuss the Plan Change during the remainder of the Waiting Period.

Following the expiration of the Waiting Period, the Union shall have the right to serve the Hospital with a written notice of termination of this Agreement (referred to hereafter in this Article as a "Notice of Termination"), which shall specify the date upon which the Agreement shall terminate, which specified date must be at least twenty (20) consecutive calendar days following the date of service (in the manner provided for, below) of such a Notice of Termination (referred to hereafter in this Article as the "Notification Period"). The parties agree that once such Notice of Termination has been served by the Union, with the intent of bargaining a successor Agreement, the following provisions of the agreement shall stay in full force and effect: (1) Article 4 "Recognition and Union Security" and (2) Article 9 "Grievance Procedure".

In order to be effective, any Notice of Termination shall be served by (a) Hand delivery, or (b) by another method of delivery of the Notice of Termination by virtue of which the Union shall, to the Human Resources Director who shall acknowledge such hand delivery by affixing a signature and date upon a copy of the Notice of Termination. Upon the written request of the Hospital (referred to hereafter in this Article as a "Request for Proof of Delivery"), be able to the Union will produce for the Hospital a bona fide written proof of delivery (including, among other forms of proof of delivery, consisting of the signature from the Human Resources Director or designee, a sworn affidavit of service by an individual not employed by the Union who actually performs the service), which records at a minimum the date of delivery of the Notice of Termination (referred to hereafter in this Article as a "Proof of Delivery").

Any Union Request for Discussion, and any Proof of Delivery, and to be effective any Notice of Termination, shall be served upon the Hospital's Chief Executive Officer or Human Resources Director at the following address:

McKenzie-Willamette Medical Center 1460 "G" Street Springfield, Oregon 97477-4197

Any Hospital Notice of Plan Change and any Request for Proof of Delivery shall be served upon the Union at the following address:

SEIU Local 49 Attn: President 3536 SE 26th Avenue Portland, Oregon 97202

In computing the Notification Period defined above, neither the actual date of service of the Notice of Termination, nor the actual date of delivery of the Notice of Termination shall be included in the computation of such Notification Period.

ARTICLE 36 – GROUP LIFE INSURANCE

The Hospital agrees to continue to provide group life insurance and accidental death and dismemberment benefits in an amount equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the employee's previous year's W-2 annual salary, rounded to the next higher one thousand dollars (\$1,000.00), not to exceed one hundred and fifty thousand dollars (\$150,000.00). The original amount in force prior to age seventy (70) reduces to sixty-five percent (65%) at age seventy (70), and forty-five percent (45%) at age seventy-five (75).

ARTICLE 37 – DISABILITY INSURANCE

After ninety (90) calendar days of employment, the Hospital agrees to provide long term disability insurance, in an amount equal to sixty percent (60%) of the employee's monthly salary calculated on

previous year's W-2 when coordinated with social security benefits, not to exceed a maximum benefit of nine thousand dollars (\$9,000.00) after a qualifying period. If disabled, this insurance is payable to age sixty-five (65).

ARTICLE 38 – PENSION

The Hospital agrees to maintain the Quorum Health Care Corporation Retirement Savings Plan (or its successor) for the duration of this Agreement. The Summary Plan Description contains a specific description of current contribution levels. Copies of the Summary Plan Description are available in the Hospital's Human Resources Department and on-line. If the Quorum Health Care Corporation Retirement Savings Plan is voluntarily modified by Quorum to reduce or increase contribution limits or levels for only employees covered under this Agreement, who are participants in the Quorum Health Care Corporation Retirement Savings Plan, the Hospital and the Union will negotiate the impact of those modifications on bargaining unit members. Changes required by law or that apply to all participants in the Quorum Health Care Corporation Retirement Savings Plan are not affected by this Article, and nothing in this Article shall prevent or delay any modification of the Quorum Health Care Corporation Retirement Savings Plan by Quorum.

ARTICLE 39 – UNIFORMS AND LAUNDRY

- 1. When employees are required to wear uniforms or special type work clothes while in the employment of the Hospital, the cost of laundering and furnishing same shall be borne by the Hospital, provided that the Hospital shall not be required to furnish or launder apparel traditionally worn by such employees in hospitals generally.
- 2. The Hospital will launder employee's own apparel if the apparel is soiled by blood or other potentially infectious materials ("OPIM"). The Hospital and the employees shall follow applicable infection control policies to ensure the safety of employees.
 - a. Employees who are required to change in and out of uniforms or special type of work clothes that are not traditionally worn by employees of hospitals, generally, shall use paid time.
- 3. Dietary employees shall be furnished necessary aprons and smocks while working.

ARTICLE 40 – PHYSICAL EXAMINATIONS

Physical or mental examinations required by the Hospital shall be promptly complied with by all employees, provided, however, the Hospital shall pay for all such examinations. Employees coming back from medical leaves of absence must have clearance from the treating Physician.

ARTICLE 41 – MEALS

The Hospital agrees to provide free meals for Dietary workers during the term of this Agreement. Any other alterations in meal policies or benefits applied to other bargaining units shall apply to this unit also.

ARTICLE 42 – SAFETY AND HEALTH

The Safety Committee shall have maximum of four (4) positions for the SEIU bargaining unit. Time paid will not drive consecutive day overtime. Overtime will be paid for over forty (40) hours per week. Employees will be selected by the bargaining unit and the Union will notify administration in writing the names of those employees so selected.

Employees will comply with the hospital's Safety and Infection Control Policies.

ARTICLE 43 – DURATION OF AGREEMENT

The Agreement shall become effective on September 1, 2021, and shall remain in effect until 11:59 p.m. December 31, 2024 and from year to year thereafter; provided, however, that either party upon no less than ninety (90) calendar days written notice to the other party, prior to December 31, 2024, or December 31st of any subsequent year, may notify the other party of its desire to amend or terminate this Agreement upon the expiration of its then current term. If such notice to amend or terminate is timely served, negotiations shall commence between the parties within fifteen (15) days after receipt thereof. Request to amend shall be submitted with the notification.

ARTICLE 44 – SUBSTANCE-FREE WORKPLACE

The parties agree that the Employees covered under this Agreement shall be subject to QHC Policy B.4: SUBSTANCE ABUSE TESTING/FITNESS FOR DUTY, effective February 1, 2009 (the "Substance Abuse Policy"), as may be modified from time to time by the Hospital, a copy of which has been provided to the Union during negotiations, except as limited below. In the event the Hospital modifies the Substance Abuse Policy during the term of this Agreement, such modification shall be automatically applied to the Employees covered by this Agreement, contemporaneously with the other covered Hospital employees. Any modifications to Policy B.4 negotiated by other SEIU Local Unions at other QHC owned Hospitals shall be offered to this bargaining unit.

APPENDIX A – WAGE SCALE

Year 1 \$5008 \$5009 \$5009 \$5010 (EAR 1 MWMC Job Description Medical Records Clerk U Switchboard Operator U Nurse Aide Certified II U OR Tech I U CT Technologist Charge U Maintenance Specialist Ld U Maintenance Specialist U Materials Aide OR U Maintenance Worker I U Patient Registration Ld U Receptionist Imaging Ld U Storeroom Clerk U CT Technologist U Medical Technologist Chg U Medical Technologist U Resp Therapist Reg Chrg U Resp Therapist Reg U Jitrasound Tech Charge U Jitrasound Technologist U ecretary Wmns Hith Birth U Waintenance Worker II U Polysom Tech Registered U HIM Technician U ab Section Coord Charge U ab Section Coord U EG/EKG Tech Charge U hysical Therapy Asst U iterile Processing Tech II U ranscriptionist Lead U deceiving Clerk U cheduling Coord OR U oder IP/OP U olysom Tech Charge U oder OP U echnical Lab Assistants atient Transporter U anscriptionist U harmacy Tech Cert U ed Lab Tech U stology Technologist U ntenance Eng II L U tenance Eng I U logy Tech Intern U ogy Tech Charge U Spec U 3,009 CT Tech Pharmacy Tech Certified NEW Radiology Tech Charge Charge CT Tech Med Tech ASCP Charge Med Tech ASCP Maintenance Specialist Lead Maintenance Specialist ED Paramedic Maintenance Worker II Respiratory Therapist Registered Sterile Processing Tech II Clerk Specialist Lead Shipping and Receiving Clerk Materials Aide OR Scheduling Coord OR Maintenance Worker Clerk Specialist Patient Registration Clerk Lead Diagnostic Imaging Receptionist Storeroom Clerk Diagnostic Imaging Transporter/Patient SEIU Appendix C Job Description Clerk Generalist Ultrasound Tech Charge Ultrasound Tech Clinical Engineer Lead Clinical Engineer EEG/EKG Tech Charge EEG/EKG Tech Polysom Tech (Reg.) Respiratory Therapist Registered Charge Physical Therapy Assistant Coder Outpatient Histology Aide Central Scheduling Coordinator Radiology Tech Lab Section Coordinator Charge Patient Registration Clerk ab Section Coordinator oder Inpatient/Outpatien ology Tech Intern board Operator SELECTIVE 10.009 Step 1 \$ 15.54 \$ 36.25 \$ 38.25 \$ 20.11 \$ 17.12 \$ 37.82 \$ 39.33 \$ 37.33 \$ 35.82 \$ 34.61 \$ 32.61 \$ 29.87 5 28.51 \$ 25.48 5 21.47 \$ 18.95 \$ 18.08 \$ 27.67 26.51 25.48 31.71 26.17 30.91 26.51 29.71 30.21 21.29 20.11 15.54 15.54 37.34 17.63 35.59 38.89 36.89 31.84 22.11 \$ 16.01 28.46 26.96 26.24 23.84 21.93 20.05 18.58 33.10 31.10 32.60 30.60 16.01 \$ 18.51 \$ \$ 18.16 \$ 38.46 \$ 40.46 \$ 40,00 \$ 34,60 \$ 32.80 \$ 29.27 \$ 30.13 \$ 34.02 \$ \$ 27.03 \$ \$ 33.52 \$ \$ 20.65 \$ 19.09 \$ 18.51 \$ 18.51 \$ 41.60 \$ 39.60 \$ 31.52 Step 3 \$ 24.56
 Step 3
 Step 4
 Step 5
 St

 5
 16.49
 \$ 17.49
 \$

 5
 16.49
 \$ 17.49
 \$

 \$ 16.98
 \$ 17.49
 \$

 \$ 16.99
 \$ 17.49
 \$

 \$ 16.49
 \$ 16.98
 \$ 17.49

 \$ 16.49
 \$ 16.98
 \$ 17.49

 \$ 16.49
 \$ 16.98
 \$ 17.49

 \$ 19.97
 \$ 19.95
 \$ 20.55
 21,33 28.13 28.13 22.59 21.33 18.51 27.03 18.51 19.09 17.59 17.59 22 S 34.97 S 35.94 S 3 33 S 27.84 S 28.68 S 2 33 S 28.97 S 29.84 S 3 33 S 28.97 S 29.84 S 3 33 S 28.97 S 29.84 S 3 33 S 28.97 S 31.84 S 3 37 S 28.60 S 29.46 S 3 30 S 30.10 S 30.96 S 3 30 S 35.64 S 33.62 S 3 30 S 35.64 S 36.71 S 3 30 S 37.64 S 36.71 S 3 30 S 39.14 S 40.31 S 4 30 S 39.14 S 40.31 S 4 30 S 40.79 S 42.01 S 4 30 S 40.79 S 42.01 S 4 30 S 40.79 S 42.01 S 4 34.47 \$ 3 23.45 \$
21.97 \$
21.97 \$
23.58 \$
23.27 \$
25.30 \$
32.47 \$ 18.66 S
18.66 S
20.16 Step 6 Step 5 18.01 S 5 18.01 S 5 18.01 S 5 18.01 S 5 21.17 S 23.31 \$... 37.81 \$ 39.81 \$ 41.52 \$ 43.52 \$ 19.84 \$ 19.84 \$ 42.02 \$ 43.27 \$ 44.02 \$ 45.27 \$ \$ 20.23 \$ 21.73 \$ 22.57 \$ 24.87 \$ 35.83 5 34.63 \$ 30.34 S 36.94 29.54 36.44 S 23.31 S 25.02 S 24.69 S 26.84 S 34.44 S 32.74 30.74 30.74 29.54 24.87 \$ 20.23 20.23 20.23 20.72 \$ 18.55 \$ 18.55 \$ 18.55 \$ 18.55 \$ 21.81 \$ 21.81 42.77 \$ 44.77 \$ 20.44 \$ 43.28 \$ 45.28 \$ 38.94 32.75 24.01 \$ 25.77 \$ 25.62 \$ 20.84 36.90 35.67 31.25 33.66 31.66 37.97 \$ 35.97 37.47 \$ 27.65 24.01 \$ 20.84 31.66 30,43 35,47 23.25 \$ 20.84 25.43 \$ 25.62 \$ 30.43 \$ 20.84 Step 8 56 5 19.11 5 5 19.11 5 5 19.11 5 5 19.11 5 1 22.46 5 2. 44.58 \$ 46.14 46.58 \$ 48.14 33.69 \$ 34.82 \$ 36.74 \$ 38.03 \$ 21.05 \$ 44.58 \$ 42.11 \$ 36.74 S 23.95 \$ 26.39 \$ 22.97 \$ 21.47 \$ 32.61 \$ 32.61 \$ 31.34 \$ 46.05 \$ 44.05 \$ 40.11 \$ 28.48 \$ 21.47 31.34 \$ 26.19 \$ 26.54 \$ 24.73 \$ 24.73 \$ 26.39 \$ 32.19 \$ 34.61 \$ 39.03 \$ 37.03 \$ 38.53 \$ 39.81 36.53 \$ 21.89 \$ Step 9 \$ 24.79 \$ 25.66 \$ 27.31 \$ 28.27 \$ 27.31 \$ 28.27 \$ 25.60 \$ 26.50 \$ 47.52 \$ 49.18 \$ 49.52 \$ 51.18 47.59 43.51 \$ 40.31 S 32.44 S 32.44 S 33.75 S 21.79 45.59 39.34 33.32 22.22 \$ 19.78 \$ 19.78 \$ 19.78 \$ 23.25 \$ 35.75 33.75 38.31 25.60 \$ 27.47 \$ 29.48 \$ 22.22 \$ 22.60 37.81 \$ 27.11 \$ 22.22 \$ 22.60 \$ 47.19 \$ 49.19 \$ 22.55 \$ 47.75 \$ 20.47 \$ 20.47 \$ 20.47 \$ 20.47 \$ 20.47 \$ 24.06 28.27 26.50 26.50 23.00 39.36 40.72 42.96 44.96 35.99 41.63 41.13 28.43 34,49 33.58 39.13 23.00 34.93 34.93 33.58 39.63 30.51 28.06 23.00 23.00 23.00 9 \$ 48.84 \$ 50.55 9 \$ 50.84 \$ 52.55 5 \$ 23.34 5 \$ 94.32 \$ 52.16 5 \$ 51.42 \$ 53.15 5 \$ 51.42 \$ 53.15 8 \$ 50.90 \$ 52.68 8 \$ 52.90 \$ 54.68 \$ 44.46 \$ 46.02 \$ 46.46 \$ 48.02 \$ 38.15 \$ 35.70 \$ 37.20 \$ 40.74 \$ 44.46 \$ 31.58 \$ 40.50 \$ 42.50 \$ 26.56 \$ 21.19 \$ 21.19 \$ 21.19 \$ 21.19 \$ 24.90 \$ 29.43 \$ 30.46 \$ 29.04 \$ 30.06 Step 11 42.15 36.15 36.15 43.00 34.76 34.76 41.00 27.43 25.31 23,81 23.81 23.81 23.81 23.81 24.10 22.60 27.43 \$ 28.39 29.26 \$ 30.28 \$ 21.93 \$ 21.93 \$ 21.93 \$ 21.93 \$ 21.93 \$ 21.93 \$ 21.93 \$ 25.77 \$ \$ 32.69 \$ 27.49 \$ 24.64 \$ 26.14 \$ 44.42 \$ 35.98 \$ 43.63 \$ 38.45 \$ 43.92 \$ 39.42 \$ 42.42 24.64 37.42 24.64 42.17 37.42 35.98 28.39 24.64 24.64 24.64 24.89 23.39 23.39 36.95 5 5 52.94 5 54.79 5 5 54.94 5 56.79 8 5 54.52 5 56.43 8 5 56.52 5 58.43 \$ 22.70 \$ 22.70 \$ 22.70 \$ 22.70 \$ 22.70 \$ 22.70 \$ 26.67 \$ \$ 31.34 \$ 25.01 \$ 45.89 \$ 28,45 \$ 39.74 \$ 33.83 \$ 31.53 54.32 49.63 43.89 45.39 43.39 29.38 31,34 27.00 25.50 25.50 25.50 47.63 43.65 40.73 38.73 37.24 37.24 29.38 \$ 52.32 38.73 25.50 38.24 \$ 25.89 \$ 54.79 \$ 56.79 \$ 32.44 \$ 30.41 \$ 30.41 \$ 32.63 \$ 32.20 \$ 35.01 \$ 44.91 \$ 46.91 \$ 41.08 \$ 47.41 \$ 38.54 Step 14 \$ 23,49 \$ 32.44 45.18 46.74 49.30 51.30 54.15 39.58 38.54 40.09 40.09 45.41 29.45 25.06 25.06 25.06 26.56 26.56 26.39 26.39 26.39 26.39 26.39 26.39 23.49 23.49 23.49 27.60 \$ 56.05 \$ 58.05 \$ 26.80 \$ 56.71 \$ 58.71 \$ 58.41 \$ 60.41 \$ 48.98 \$ 39.89 \$ 41.49 \$ 41.49 \$ 40.97 \$ 40.97 \$ 48.38 \$ 51.03 \$ 53.03 \$ 48.48 Step 15 \$3.03 \$6.05 \$8.05 28.57 46,48 30,48

W3N 880S	W3N 980S	Wan S805	S084 NEW	5083 NEW	5082 NEW	5082 NEW	M3N 1805	M3N 0805	S079 NEW	5078	5077	5076	5075	5074	5073	5073	5071	\$070	5069	5069	8908	8905	5067	5064	\$063	5060	6505	8505	8505	5056	5055	5054	5052	5052	5051
Nurse Asst Cert (CNA)	Electrophysiology Tech Lead U	Electrophysiology Tech III U	Electrophysiology Tech II U	Cardiovasc Tech AdvskilsU	Electrophysiology Tech I U	Cardiovasc Tech III U	Cardiovasc Tech II U	Surgical Tech Cert U	Phlebotomist/Lab Aide U	Interventional Rad Techno U	Unit Services Coord Ld U	Unit Secretary U	Pharmacy Tech Cort Ld U	Echo Tech Lead U	Holter Analyst Lead U	Endoscopy Tech Lead U	Clinical Pharmacist Ld U	Clinical Pharmacist U	Nuclear Med Techno Chrg U	MRI Techno Charge U	Nuclear Medical Techno U	MRI Techno U	OB Tech U	Custodian Lead U	Custodian U	EXG Tech U	EXG/CCT Tech U	Holter Analyst U	Endoscopy Tech U	Echo Tech U	Monitor Technician Lead U	Monitor Technician U	Cath Lab Asst U	Cardiovasc Tech U	Insurance Verify Rep U
NEW	NEW	NEW	NEW	Cardiovascular Interventional Tech Charge	WEW	NEW	WEW	Certified Surgical Tech	Lab Assistant	Interventional Rad Tech	Unit Services Coordinator Lead	Unit Services Coordinator	Pharmacy Tech Lead	Echo Tech Lead	Holter Analyst Lead	Endo Tech Lead	Clinical Pharmacist Lead	Clinical Pharmacist	Nuclear Med Tech Charge	MRI Tech Charge	Nuclear Med Tech	MRI Tech	O8 Tech	Custodian Team Lead	Custodian	EKG Tech	EKG/CCT Tech	Holter Analyst	Endoscopy Tech	Echo Tech	Monitor Tech Lead	Monitor Tech	Cath Lab Asst	Cardiovascular Interventional Tech	Pre-Service Specialist
	10							5.00%	3.00%				5,00%				7						8,00%		5.00%										
5 17.09	\$ 47.03	\$ 45.53	\$ 43.63	\$ 43.24	\$ 41.74	\$ 41.74	\$ 39.84	\$ 26.75	\$ 17.98	\$ 34.09	\$ 18.58	\$ 17.08	\$ 21.61	\$ 39.42	\$ 23.86	\$ 23.86	\$ 60.92	\$ 59.42	\$ 37.37	\$ 37.37	\$ 35.37	\$ 35.37	\$ 19.02	\$ 16.92	\$ 15.42	\$ 17.79	\$ 19.96	\$ 22.36	\$ 22.36	\$ 37.92	\$ 19.92	\$ 18.42	\$ 37.94	\$ 37.94	5 19.67
\$ 17.09	\$ 48.40	\$ 46.90	\$ 44.94	\$ 44.49	\$ 42.99	\$ 42.99	\$ 41.04	\$ 27.55	\$ 18.52	\$ 35.11	\$ 19.09	\$ 17.59	\$ 22.21	\$ 40.56	\$ 24.53	\$ 24.53	\$ 62.70	\$ 61.20	\$ 38.43	\$ 38.43	\$ 36.43	\$ 36.43	\$ 19.59	\$ 17.38	\$ 15.88	\$ 18.32	\$ 20.56	\$ 23.03	\$ 23.03	\$ 39.06	\$ 20.47	\$ 18.97	\$ 39.08	\$ 39.08	5 20.26
\$ 17.60	\$ 49.81	\$ 48.31	\$ 46.29	\$ 45.78	5 44,28	\$ 44.28	\$ 42.27	5 28.38	\$ 19.08	\$ 36.16	\$ 19.62	\$ 18.12	\$ 22.83	\$ 41.73	\$ 25.22	\$ 25.22	\$ 64.54	\$ 63.04	\$ 39.52	\$ 39.52	\$ 37.52	\$ 37.52	\$ 20.18	\$ 17.86	\$ 16.36	\$ 18.87	\$ 21.18	\$ 23.72	\$ 23.72	\$ 40.23	\$ 21.04	\$ 19.54	\$ 40.25	5 40.25	5 20.87
\$ 18.13	\$ 51.26	\$ 49.76	\$ 47.68	\$ 47.11	\$ 45.61	\$ 45.61	\$ 43.54	\$ 29.23	\$ 19.65	\$ 37.24	\$ 20.16	\$ 18.66	\$ 23,47	\$ 42.94	\$ 25.93	\$ 25.93	\$ 66.43	\$ 64.93	\$ 40.65	\$ 40.65	\$ 38.65	\$ 38.65	\$ 20,79	\$ 18.35	\$ 16.85	\$ 19.44	\$ 21.82	\$ 24.43	\$ 24.43	\$ 41.44	\$ 21.63	\$ 20.13	\$ 41.46	\$ 41.46	\$ 21.50
\$ 18.67	\$ 52.75	\$ 51.25	\$ 49.11	\$ 48.48	\$ 46.98	\$ 46.98	\$ 44.85	\$ 30.11	\$ 20.24	\$ 38.36	\$ 20.72	\$ 19.22	\$ 24.13	\$ 44.18	\$ 26.66	\$ 26.66	\$ 68.38	\$ 66.88	5 41.81	\$ 41.81	\$ 39.81	\$ 39.81	\$ 21.41	\$ 18.86	\$ 17.36	\$ 20.02	\$ 22.47	\$ 25.16	\$ 25.16	\$ 42.68	\$ 22.23	\$ 20.73	\$ 42,70	\$ 42.70	5 22.15
5 19.23	\$ 54.29	\$ 52.79	\$ 50.58	\$ 49.89	\$ 48.39	\$ 48.39	\$ 46.20	\$ 31.01	\$ 20.85	\$ 39.51	\$ 21.30	\$ 19.80	\$ 24.81	\$ 45.46	\$ 27.41	\$ 27.41	\$ 70.39	\$ 68.89	\$ 43.00	\$ 43.00	\$ 41.00	\$ 41.00	\$ 22.05	5 19.38	5 17.88	\$ 20.62	\$ 23.14	\$ 25.91	\$ 25.91	\$ 43.96	\$ 22.85	\$ 21.35	\$ 43.98	\$ 43.98	5 22.81
5 19.81	\$ 55.87	\$ 54.37	\$ 52.10	\$ 51.34	5 49.84	\$ 49.84	\$ 47.59	\$ 31.94	5 21.48	\$ 40.70	\$ 21.89	\$ 20.39	\$ 25.51	\$ 46.78	\$ 28.19	\$ 28.19	\$ 72.46	\$ 70.96	\$ 44.23	5 44.23	\$ 42.23	\$ 42.23	\$ 22.71	\$ 19.92	5 18.42	\$ 21.24	\$ 23.83	\$ 26.69	\$ 26.69	\$ 45.28	\$ 23.49	\$ 21.99	\$ 45.30	\$ 45.30	5 23.49
\$ 20.40	1 \$ 57.50	S	\$ 53.66	S	5 51.34	\$ 51.34	\$ 49.02	\$ 32.90	8 5 22.12	5 41.92	s	\$ 21.00	\$ 26.23	8 5 48.14	s	\$ 28.99	5 5 74.59	S	S	99	\$ 43.50	\$ 43.50	5 23.39	5 20.47	s	\$ 21.88		5 27.49	\$ 27.49	\$ 46.64	\$ 24.15	\$ 22.65	\$ 46.66	S	5 24.19
0 5 21.11	\$ 59	\$ 57	6 \$ 55.54	4 5 54.64	4 5 53.14	4 \$ 53.14	2 \$ 50.74	0 \$ 34.05	5 22	2 \$ 43.39	0 \$ 23.24	0 \$ 21.74	3 \$ 27.10	4 \$ 49.77	9 \$ 29.95	U.		9 5 75.65	0 \$ 47.02	0 \$ 47.02	0 \$ 45.02	0 \$ 45.02	9 \$ 24.21	7 \$ 21.13		8 5 22.65	44	9 \$ 28.45	9 \$ 28.45	4 \$ 48.27	5 5 24.94	5 5 23.44	6 \$ 48.29	6 5 48.29	9 5 25.04
1 5 21.85	s	96 \$ 59.99	s	4 5 56.50	4 \$ 55.00	w	4 \$ 52.52	S	89 \$ 23.69	19 \$ 44.91	4 \$ 24.00	S	0 \$ 28.00	S	5 30.95	S	5 79.80	50	2 5 48.60	Ų5	3 46.60	2 \$ 46.60	1 \$ 25.06	S	3 \$ 20.32	s	s	5 \$ 29.45	s	s	4 5 25.76	S	9 \$ 49.98	9 \$ 49.98	M S 25.92
s	49 5 63	99 5 62	s	S	w	S	w	S	S	S	S	s	s	v	40	w	v	w	40	40	S	s	s	S	s	us.	s	s	w	v	s	50	v.	S	4
22.61 \$ 2	59 \$	\$ 60	59.49 \$ 6	58.43 \$ 6	56.93 \$ 5	56.93 \$ 5	54.36 \$ 5	36.47 \$ 3	24.52 \$ 2	46.48 \$ 4	24.79 \$ 2	23.29 \$ 2	28.93 \$ 2	53.21 \$ 5	31.98 \$ 3		82.54 \$ 8	5	50,23 \$ 5	50.23 \$ 5	48.23 5 4	48.23 \$ 4	25.94 \$ 2	22.53 \$ 2		24.26 \$ 2	27.21 \$ 2		30.48 \$ 3		26.61 \$ 2	25.11 \$ 2	51.73 \$ 5	51.73 \$ 5	26.83 \$ 2
23.40 5	s	64.26 \$ 1		150	58.92 \$ 4	S	56.26 \$ 9	45	w	50	S	w	29.89 \$	v.	33.05 \$	w	w			1/4		44	26.85 \$	23.27 \$	21.77 \$		\$		31.55 \$	v.	27.49 \$	50	53.54 \$ 1	53.54 \$	27.77 5
24.22 \$	68.01 \$	66.51 \$	63,72 \$	62.48 \$	\$ 86.09	S	58.23 \$	39,07 \$	26.27 \$	49,79 \$	26.45 \$	24.95 \$	30.88 \$	56.89 \$	34.15 \$	34.15 \$	S	86.82 \$	53.67 \$	53.67 \$	51.67 \$	51.67 \$	27.79 \$	24.03 \$	v	25.99 \$	29.15 \$	32.65 \$	s.	55.39 \$	28.40 \$	26.90 \$	55,41 \$	55.41 \$	28.74 5
25.07 \$	70.34 \$	68.84 \$	65.95 \$	64.61 \$	63.11 \$	63.11 \$	60.27 \$	40.44 \$	27.19 \$	\$1.53 \$	27.32 \$	25.82 \$	31.91 \$	58.83 \$	35.29 \$	35.29 \$	91.36 \$	89.86 \$	55.48 \$	55.48 5	53.48 \$	53.48 \$	28.76 \$	24.82 \$	23.32 \$	26.90 \$	30.17 \$	33.79 \$	33.79 \$	57.33 \$	29.34 \$	27.84 \$	57.35 \$	57.35 \$	29.75 \$
25.95	72.75	71.25	68.26	66.82	65.32		62.38	41.86	28.14	53.33	28.22	26.72	32.97	60.84	36.47	36.47	94.51	93.01	57.35	57.35	55.35	55.35	29.77	25.64	24.14	27.84	31.23	34.97	34.97	59.34	30.31	28.81	59.36	59.36	30.79

\$055	5054	5052	5052	1505	5048	5047	5046	5045	5044	5043	5041	\$040	5039	\$603	5037	5036	\$035	5034	5033	5032	\$030	\$030	9029	5029	\$028	5027	\$026	5024	5023	8108	5017	9105	5016	5013	2108	1108	0105	0108	0105	5010	5010	5010	5009	6009	8008	8002		5007	2005	5005	\$005	5005	S/R
Monitor Technician Lead U	Monitor Technician U	Cath Lab Asst U	Cardiovasc Tech U	Insurance Verify Rep U	Radiology Tech Charge U	Radiology Tech U	Ultrasound Tech Charge U	Ultrasound Technologist U	CT Technologist Charge U	CT Technologist U	Secretary Wmns Hith Birth U	Lab Section Coord Charge U	Lab Section Coord U	Medical Technologist Chg U	Medical Technologist U	Maintenance Eng II L U	Maintenance Eng I U	Maintenance Specialist Ld U	Maintenance Specialist U	EEG/EKG Tech Charge U	EEG Tech U	Coder IP/OP U	Maintenance Worker II U	Paramedic U	Polysom Tech Charge U	Polysom Tech Registered U	Resp Therapist Reg Chrg U	Resp Therapist Reg U	Physical Therapy Asst U	Transcriptionist U	Coder OP U	Technical Lab Assistants	Pharmacy Tech Cert U	Med Lab Tech U	Histolagy Technologist II	Transcriptionist Lead U	Receiving Clerk U	Scheduling Coord OR U	Materials Aide OR U	Maintenance Worker I U	HIM Technician U	Central Scheduler U	Patient Registration Ld U	Receptionist Imaging Ld U	Storeroom Clerk U	Admissions Spar II		Nurse Aide Certified II U	Switchboard Operator U	Radiology Tech Intern U	OR Tech I U	Medical Records Clerk U	MWMC Job Description
Monitor Tech Lead	Monitor Tech	Cath Lab Asst	Cardiovascular Interventional Tech	Pre-Service Specialist	Radiology Tech Charge	Radiology Tech	Ultrasound Tech Charge	Ultrasound Tech	Charge CT Tech	CT Tech	WH8C Secretary	Lab Section Coordinator Charge	Lab Section Coordinator	Med Tech ASCP Charge	Med Tech ASCP	Clinical Engineer Lead	Clinical Engineer	Maintenance Specialist Lead	Maintenance Specialist	EEG/EKG Tech Charge	EEG/EKG Tech	Coder Inpatient/Outpatient	Maintenance Worker II	ED Paramedic		Polysom Tech (Reg)	Respiratory Therapist Registered Charge	Respiratory Therapist Registered	Physical Therapy Assistant	Transcriptionist	Coder Outpatient	WEW	Pharmacy Tech Certified	Section of the sectio	Mistology Aide	Clerk Specialist Lead	Shipping and Receiving Clerk	Scheduling Coord OR	Materials Aide OR	Maintenance Worker	Clerk Specialist	Central Scheduling Coordinator	Patient Registration Clerk Lead	Diagnostic Imaging Receptionist	Storegoom Clerk	Patient Registration Clerk	Diagnostic Imaging Transporter/Patient	CNAII	Switchboard Operator	Radiology Tech Intern	OR Aide	Clerk Generalist	SEU Appendix C Job Description
																													75			93																					SELECTIVE
20.47	79	39.08	39.08	20.26	33.53	31.53	\$ 40.45	38.45	\$ 39.34	37.34	\$ 17.63	38.89	36.89	35.59	33.59	31.84	30,77	\$ 28.46	\$ 26.96	\$ 29.31	\$ 27.31	\$ 27.31	\$ 26.24	\$ 26.24	\$ 33.10	31.10	32.60	30.60	23.84	21.93	22.22	20.71	20.71	22.11	\$ 20.05	19,47	17.97	\$ 17.97	\$ 17.97	17.97	17.97	-	18 58	18.58	- 1	\$ 17.08		19.37	16.01	-	16.01	요	Step 1
_	\$ 19.54	\$ 40.25	3.3	\$ 20.87		\$ 32,48	\$ 41.60	\$ 39.60	\$ 40.46	\$ 38.46	\$ 18.16	\$ 40.00	38.00	36.60	34.60	32.80	31.69	\$ 29.27	\$ 27.77	\$ 30.13	5 28.13	\$ 28.13	\$ 27.03	27.03	\$ 34.02	\$ 32.02	33.52	31.52	24.56	22.59	22.89	21.33	21.33	22.77	\$ 20.03	Gl&	\$ 18.51	\$ 18.51	\$ 18.51	18.51	18.51	\$ 18.51	- 1	\$ 19.09	-	277.59		19.37	\$ 16.49 \$	16.49	16.49	6	Step 2 S
21.63	_	_	-	_	\$ 35.45	_	\$ 42.79	\$ 40.79	\$ 41.61	\$ 39.61	\$ 18.70	5 41.14	39.14	-	35.64	33.78	-	\$ 30.10	\$ 28.60	\$ 30.97	5 28.97	\$ 28.97	\$ 27.84	27.84	\$ 34.97	\$ 32.97	_	32.47	25.30	23.27		21.97	21.97	23.45	2777	-	-	\$ 19.07	\$ 19.07	19.07	\rightarrow	-	\rightarrow	-	18.12	2 18 17	_	19.95	12.00	16.98	16.98	8	Step 3 S
22.23	-	\$ 42.70	\$ 42.70	\$ 22.15	\$ 36.45		\$ 44.01	\$ 42.01	\$ 42.80	\$ 40.80	\$ 19.26	\$ 42.31	40.31	38.71	36.71	34.79	33.62	\$ 30.96	\$ 29.46	\$ 31.84	\$ 29.84	29.84	\$ 28.68	28.68	\$ 35.94	\$ 33.94	35.44		26.06	23.97	24.29	22.63		24.15	24 77 5	21.14	19.64	\$ 19.64	\$ 19.64	19.64	19.64	19.64		\$ 20.16	. 1	18 66		20.55	17.49	17,49	17.49	5	Step 4
22.85	_	-	-	$\overline{}$	-	_	\$ 45.27	-	-	-	\$ 19.84	\$ 43.52	41.52	+	37.81	35.83	+	\$ 31.84	\$ 30.34	\$ 32.74	\$ 30.74	\$ 30.74	\$ 29.54		\$ 36.94	\$ 34.94	_	_	_	24.69	25.02	-	-	24.87	5 22.57	21.73	-	\$ 20.23	\$ 20.23	20.23	20.23	-	-	77	-	\$ 19.22	1	21.17	_	18.01	18.01	2	Step 5
23.49	_	45	- 1			- 1	\$ 46.57		\$ 45.28	\$ 43.28	\$ 20.44	\$ 44.77			38.94	36.90		\$ 32.75	\$ 31.25	\$ 33.66	\$ 31.66	\$ 31.66	\$ 30.43		\$ 37.97	\$ 35.97				- 1	- 1	- 1	- 1	- 1	0 23.63			\$ 20.84	\$ 20.84		- 1		- 1	\$ 21.30		2 19.80		21.81	18.55		- 1	58	Step 6
24.15	22.65	46.66	46.66		\$ 39.64 \$	- 1	\$ 47.91	\$ 45.91 \$	\$ 46.58		\$ 21.05	1	44.05	42.11		\$ 38.01 \$	1		\$ 32.19	\$ 34.61 \$	\$ 32.61	\$ 32.61	\$ 31.34		\$ 39.03 \$	\$ 37.03 \$				\$ 26.19 \$	- 1	- 1	- 1		C 26395 5		1		\$ 21.47 \$		\$ 21.47 \$	\$ 21.47	- 1	21.89		\$ 20.39		\$ 22.46	\$ 19.11	\$ 19.11	\$ 19.11	5 19.11	Step 7
\$ 24.83	23.33	48.06	48.06	24.92	40.77	38.77	49.29	47.29	47.92	45.92	21.68	47.37	\$ 45.37	43.31	41.31	39.15	\$ 37.84	\$ 34.66	\$ 33.16	\$ 35.59	\$ 33.59	\$ 33.59	\$ 32.28	\$ 32.28	\$ 40.13	\$ 38.13	\$ 39.63	\$ 37.63	\$ 29.33	\$ 26.98	5 27.34	\$ 25.47	\$ 25.47	\$ 27.18	5 24.67	\$ 23.61 \$	\$ 22.11	\$ 22.11	\$ 22.11	22.11	22.11	22.11	22 50	22 50	21 00	\$ 21.00		5 23.13	\$ 19.68	\$ 19.68	\$ 19.68	5 19.68	Step 8
\$ 25.65		\$ 49.74	\$ 49.74 \$	\$ 25.79	42.13	\$ 40.13	50.95	\$ 48.95	\$ 49.53	\$ 47.53 \$	\$ 22,44	\$ 48.96	\$ 46.96	\$ 44.76	\$ 42.76	\$ 40.52 \$	\$ 39.16	\$ 35.82 \$	\$ 34.32	\$ 36.77 \$	\$ 34.77	\$ 34.77	\$ 33.41	\$ 33.41	\$ 41.45 \$	\$ 39.45 \$	\$ 40.95	\$ 38.95	\$ 30.36	27.92	28.30	\$ 26.36	\$ 26.36 \$	5 28 13	6 28 13 6	\$ 24.38	22.88	22.88	22.88	\$ 22.88	22.88	22.88	23.24	23 24		\$ 21.74		\$ 23.94	\$ 20.37	\$ 20.37	\$ 20.37	\$ 20.37	Step 9
\$ 26.50	\$ 25.00	\$ 51.48	\$ 51,48	\$ 26.69	so.	\$ 41.53	S	\$ 50.66	51.19	49.19	23.23	50.60	\$ 48.60	\$ 46.26	44.26	\$ 41.94	\$ 40.53	\$ 37.02	\$ 35.52	\$ 37.99 \$	\$ 35.99	\$ 35.99	\$ 34.58	\$ 34.58	\$ 42.81	\$ 40.81	\$ 42.31	\$ 40.31	\$ 31,42	100	in l	5 27.28	\$ 27.28	5 29.11	\$ 20.42	\$ 25.18 \$	KA	ion	10	10	50	(0)	0	5	n 1	\$ 2250		\$ 24.78	\$ 21.08	\$ 19.11 \$ 19.68 \$ 20.37 \$ 21.08 \$ 21.82 \$ 22	\$ 21.08	\$ 21.08	Step 10
vs .	S	S	S	·s	\$ 44.98	S	**	so.	es.	\$ 50.91	S	in	\$ 50.30	10	is	\$ 43.41 \$	\$ 41.95	\$ 38.26	\$ 36.76	\$ 39.25	\$ 37.25	\$ 37.25	\$ 35.79	\$ 35.79	\$ 44.22	\$ 42.22	\$ 43.72	\$ 41.72	\$ 32.52	\$ 29.91	\$ 30.32	5 28.23	\$ 28.23	\$ 30.13	\$ 27.34	\$ 26.01	\$ 24.51	\$ 24.51 \$	\$ 24.51	\$ 24.51	\$ 24.51	\$ 24.51	\$ 24.79	5	00	\$ 23.29		\$ 25.65	\$ 21.82	\$ 21.82	\$ 21.82	\$ 21.82	Step 11
us !	S	S	s	so.	40	sn	S	50	S	40	4 \$ 24.88		150	15	\$ 47.4	1 \$ 44.93	5 \$ 43.42	6 \$ 39.55	5 38.0	5	\$ \$ 38.55	55	S	40	50	2 \$ 43.68	S	2 \$ 43.18	S	\$ 30.96	S	5	3 \$ 29.22	5	n 4	1	\$ 25.3	1 \$ 25.37	1 \$ 25.37	50	S	5	0	5	2	9 5 24.11		5	25	5	5	3	2
S	S	S	4 \$ 57,07	9 \$ 29.5	S	S	S	7 \$ 56.17	in	in	8 \$ 25.75	S	6 \$ 53.88	w	is	lus	100	lio.	100	10	100	in	40	in	10	in	10	10	S	10	5	50	ia l	10	0 0	7 \$ 27.76 \$	100	100	in	10	SO	10	A .	10	A .	2 10		5 \$ 27.4	8 \$ 23.3	8 5 23.37 5 24.19	8 5 23.3	8 5 23.3	Step 13
SO.	S	S	S		S	S	S	in	S	S	75 \$ 26.65	S	S	150	S	50 \$ 48.13	14 \$ 46	8 \$ 42	8 5 40.	90 \$ 43.30	0 \$ 41.30	0 5 41	4 5 39.	4 \$ 39.	9 5 48.	9 \$ 46.	9 5 48	9 \$ 46	\$4 \$ 36.06	M \$ 33.16	8 5 33	4 5 31	24 5 31.30	7 5 33.40	07 6 33.40	76 5 28.68	26 \$ 27.18	26 \$ 27.18	26 \$ 27.18	26 \$ 27.18	26 \$ 27.18	% S 27.18	15 5 27.32	31	5 5 25	28.57 5 50		8 5 28.	7 5 24	7 5 24	7 5 24	7 5 24	Step 14
50	S	VA.	S	S	50	S	14 \$ 62.17	58.14 \$ 60.17	44 \$ 60	S	65 \$ 27.58		5		·	13 \$ 49.81	51 \$ 48.14	42.26 \$ 43.69	40.76 \$ 42	30 \$ 44.75	30 \$ 42.75	30 \$ 42.75	68 \$ 41.07	68 \$ 41.07	48.75 \$ 50.37	46.75 \$ 48.37	25 \$ 49	S	06 \$ 37.32	55	62 \$ 34.80	S	S	40 \$ 34.57	nv	100	S	S	10	S	18 \$ 28.13	vs -	0	5	0	82 5 26.72		w	19 \$ 25.04	50	19 \$ 25.04	us I	Step 15

W3N 8805	S086 NEW	S085 NEW	S084 NEW	S083 NEW	5082 NEW	5082 NEW	S081 NEW	W3N 080S	S079 NEW	5078	5077	5076	5075	5074	5073	5073	5071	5070	5069	5069	8908	8908	5067	S064	\$063	5060	9059	8208	8208	9006
Nurse Asst Cert (CNA)		Electrophysiology Tech III U	Electrophysiology Tech II U	Cardiovasc Tech AdvskilsU	_	Cardiovasc Tech III U	Cardiovasc Tech II U	Surgical Tech Cert U	Phlebotomist/Lab Aide U	Interventional Rad Techno U	Unit Services Coord Ld U	Unit Secretary U	Pharmacy Tech Cert Ld U	Echo Tech Lead U	Holter Analyst Lead U	Endoscopy Tech Lead U	Clinical Pharmacist Ld U	Clinical Pharmacist U	Nuclear Med Techno Chrg U	MRI Techno Charge U	Nuclear Medical Techno U	MRI Techno U	OB Tech U	Custodian Lead U	Custodian U	EKG Tech U	EKG/CCT Tech U	Holter Analyst U	Endoscopy Tech U	E Cho i eCh U
M3N	NEW	NEW	NEW	Cardiovascular Interventional Tech Charge	NEW	NEW	NEW	Certified Surgical Tech	Lab Assistant	Interventional Rad Tech	Unit Services Coordinator Lead	Unit Services Coordinator	Pharmacy Tech Lead	Echo Tech Lead	Holter Analyst Lead	Endo Tech Lead	Clinical Pharmacist Lead	Clinical Pharmacist	Nuclear Med Tech Charge	MRI Tech Charge	Nuclear Med Tech	MRI Tech	OB Tech	Custodian Team Lead	Custodian	EKG Tech	EKG/CCT Tech	Holter Analyst	Endoscopy Tech	ECHO LECH
UN-	S	S	s	s	5	S	\$	S		\$	\$	s	S	S	s	\$	s	S	S	S	S	s	S	S	S	\$	\$	S	S	
17.60	48.40	46.90	44.94	44.49	42.99	42.99	41.04	27.55	18.52	35.11	19.09	17.59	22.21	40.56	24.53	24.53	62.70	61.20	38.43	38.43	36,43	36.43	19.59	17.38	15.88	18.32	20.56	23.03	23.03	33.00
\$ 17.60	\$ 49.81	\$ 48.31	\$ 46.29	\$ 45.78	\$ 44.28	\$ 44.28	\$ 42.27	\$ 28.38	\$ 19.08	\$ 36.16	\$ 19.62	\$ 18.12	\$ 22.83	\$ 41.73	\$ 25.22	\$ 25.22	\$ 64.54	\$ 63.04	\$ 39.52	\$ 39.52	\$ 37.52	\$ 37.52	\$ 20.18	\$ 17.86	\$ 16,36	\$ 18.87	\$ 21.18	\$ 23.72	\$ 23.72	C 3 Coto C
\$ 18.13	\$ 51.26	\$ 49.76	\$ 47.68	\$ 47.11	\$ 45.61	\$ 45.61	5 43.54	\$ 29.23	\$ 19.65	5 37.24	\$ 20.16	\$ 18.66	\$ 23.47	\$ 42.94	\$ 25.93	\$ 25.93	\$ 66.43	\$ 64.93	\$ 40.65	\$ 40.65	\$ 38.65	\$ 38.65	\$ 20.79	\$ 18.35	\$ 16.85	\$ 19.44	\$ 21.82	\$ 24.43	\$ 24.43	total Table
\$ 18.67	\$ 52.75	\$ 51.25	\$ 49.11	\$ 48.48	\$ 46.98	\$ 46.98	\$ 44.85	\$ 30.11	\$ 20.24	\$ 38.36	\$ 20.72	\$ 19.22	\$ 24.13	5 44.18	\$ 26.66	\$ 26.66	\$ 68.38	\$ 66.88	\$ 41.81	\$ 41.81	\$ 39.81	\$ 39.81	\$ 21.41	\$ 18.86	\$ 17.36	\$ 20.02	\$ 22.47	\$ 25.16	\$ 25.16	00.34
5 19	\$ 54.29	\$ 52.7	\$ 50.58	\$ 49.89	\$ 48.39	\$ 48.39	\$ 46.20	\$ 31.01	\$ 20.85	\$ 39.51	\$ 21.30	\$ 19.80	\$ 24.81	\$ 45.46	\$ 27.41	\$ 27.41	\$ 70.39	\$ 68.89	\$ 43.00	\$ 43.00	5 41.00	\$ 41.00	\$ 22.05	\$ 19.38	\$ 17.88	\$ 20.62	\$ 23.14	\$ 25.91	\$ 25.91	10000
23 5 19	9 5 55.87	79 \$ \$4.37	8 \$ 52.10	9 \$ 51.34	9 \$ 49.84	9 \$ 49.84	0 \$ 47.59	1 \$ 31.94	5 \$ 21.48	1 \$ 40.70	0 \$ 21.89	0 \$ 20.39	1 \$ 25.51	6 \$ 46.78	1 \$ 28.19	1 \$ 28.19	9 \$ 72.46	s	0 \$ 44.23	0 \$ 44.23	0 \$ 42.23	0 \$ 42.23	5 \$ 22.71	8 5 19.92	8 \$ 18.42	2 \$ 21.24	4 5 23.83	1 \$ 26.69	1 \$ 26.69	A 40.00
19.81 5 2	s	s	s	s	s	s	s	S	S	S	s	s	s	S	s	S	s	70.96 \$ 7	s	s	s	S	S	S	S	s	S	s	S	1
20.40 \$	57.50 \$	56.00 \$	53.66 \$ 1	52.84 \$	51.34 \$	51.34 \$	49.02 \$	32.90 \$	22.12 \$	41.92 \$.	22.50 \$	21.00 \$	26.23 \$	48.14 \$	28.99 \$	28.99 \$	74.59 \$	73.09 \$	45.50 \$.	45.50 \$	43.50 \$	43.50 \$	23.39 \$	20,47 \$	18.97 \$	21.88 \$	24.54 \$	27.49 \$	27.49 \$	A. A. O. O.
21.01 5	59.18 \$	57.68 \$	55.27 \$	54.38 \$	52.88 \$	52.88 \$	50,49 \$	33.89 \$	22.78 \$	43.18 \$	23.13 \$	21.63 \$	26.97 \$	49.54 \$	29.81 \$	29.81 \$	76.78 \$	75.28 \$	46.81 \$	46.81 \$	44.81 5	44.81 \$	24.09 \$	21.04 \$	19.54 \$	22.54 \$	25.28 \$	28.31 \$	28.31 \$	A.00'00
21.75 5	61.20 \$	59.70 \$	57.20 \$	56.23 \$	54.73 \$	54.73 \$	52.26 \$	35.08 \$	23.58 \$	44.69 \$	23.89 \$	22.39 \$	27.86 \$	51.22 \$	30.80 \$	30.80 \$	79.41 \$	77.91 \$	48.38 \$	48.38 \$	46.38 \$	46.38 \$	24,93 \$	21.72 \$	20.22 \$	23,33 \$	26.16 \$	29.30 \$	29.30 \$	40110
22 51	63.29	61.79	59.20	58.15	56.65	56.65	54.09	36.31	24.41	46.25	24.67	23.17	28.78	52.96	31.83	31.83	82.14	80.64	50.00	50.00	48.00	48.00	25.80	22.43	20.93	24.15	27.08	30.33	30.33	04/16
\$ 23 30	\$ 65.45	\$ 63.95	\$ 61.27	\$ 60.13	\$ 58.63	\$ 58.63	\$ 55.98	\$ 37.58	\$ 25.26	\$ 47.87	\$ 25,48	\$ 23.98	\$ 29.73	\$ 54.76	\$ 32.89	\$ 32.89	5 84.96	\$ 83.46	\$ 51.68	\$ 51.68	\$ 49.68	\$ 49.68	\$ 26.70		\$ 21.66	\$ 25.00	\$ 28.03	\$ 31.39	\$ 31.39	40.00
\$ 24.12	\$ 67.69	\$ 66.19	\$ 63,41	\$ 62.18	\$ 60.68	\$ 60.68	\$ 57.94	\$ 38.90	\$ 26.14	\$ 49.55	\$ 26.32	\$ 24.82	\$ 30.72	\$ 56.62	\$ 33.99	\$ 33.99	\$ 87.88	\$ 86.38	\$ 53,42	\$ 53.42	\$ 51.42	\$ 51.42	\$ 27.63	\$ 23.92	\$ 22.42	\$ 25.88	\$ 29.01	\$ 32.49	\$ 32.49	A 150.70
5 24.96	\$ 70.01	\$ 68.51	\$ 65.63	\$ 64.30	\$ 62.80	\$ 62.80	\$ 59.97	\$ 40.26	\$ 27.05	\$ 51.28	\$ 27.19	\$ 25.69	\$ 31.74	\$ 58.55	\$ 35.13	\$ 35.13	\$ 90.90	\$ 89.40	\$ 55.22	\$ 55.22	\$ 53.22	\$ 53.22	\$ 28.60	\$ 24,70	\$ 23.20	\$ 26.79	\$ 30.03	\$ 33.63	\$ 33.63	20100
5 25	1 5 72.41	1 \$ 70.91	3 \$ 67.93	0 \$ 66.50	0 \$ 65.00	0 \$ 65.00	7 \$ 62,07	6 5 41.67	5 \$ 28.00	8 \$ 53.07	9 \$ 28.09	9 \$ 26.59	4 \$ 32.80	5 \$ 60.55	s	3 \$ 36.31	0 \$ 94,03	0 \$ 92.53	2 \$ 57.08	2 \$ 57.08	2 \$ 55.08	2 \$ 55.08	0 \$ 29.60	0 \$ 25.51	0 \$ 24.01	9 \$ 27.73	3 \$ 31.08	3 \$ 34.81	3 \$ 34.81	9 22
83 5 26	s	vs	s	S	s	s	s	s	s	s	s	s	s	S	s	s	s	s	15	w	S	s	s	s,	s	S	s	s	s	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A
6 73	74.89	73.39	70.31	68.78	67.28	67.28	64.24	43.13	28.98	54.93	29.02	27.52	33.90	62.62	37.53	37.53	97.27	95.77	59.01	59.01	57.01	57.01	30.64	26.35	24.85	28.70	32.17	36.03	36.03	

3054	3606	2000	1506	5048	5047	5046	5045	5044	9043	5041	5040	5039	8038	5037	5036	5035	5034	5033	5032	0000	5030	5000	9020	7,000	9026	5024	5023	8105	5017	5016	9108	5013	2108	1105	010	9010	0108	0100	0100	9009	9009	8008	8008	8008	9007	5005	\$005	2005	5005	I E di O
Monitor Technician U	Contract Total	Cardiovasc rection	Insurance verify kep o	Radiology Tech Charge U	Radiology Tech U	Ultrasound Tech Charge U	Ultrasound Technologist U	CT Technologist Charge U	CT Technologist U	Secretary Wmns Hith Birth U	Lab Section Coord Charge U	Lab Section Coord U	Medical Technologist Chg U	Medical Technologist U	Maintenance Eng 81 L U	Maintenance Eng I U	Maintenance Specialist Ld U	Maintenance Specialist U	EEG/EKG Tech Charge U	EEG Tech U	Coder ID IOD II	Maintenance Worker II II	Paramedic II	Polysom Tech Registered U	Resp Therapist Reg Chrg U	Resp Therapist Reg U	Physical Therapy Asst U	Transcriptionist U.	Coder OP U	Technical Lab Assistants	Pharmacy Tech Cert U	Med Lab Tech U	Sterile Processing Tech II U	Transcriptionist Lead U	Receiving Clerk U	Scheduling Coord OR U	Materials Aide OR U	Maintenance Worker I U	Central Scheduler U	Patient Registration Ld U	Receptionist Imaging Ld U	Storeroom Clerk U	Admissions Spec U	Patient Transporter U	Nurse Aide Certified II U	Switchboard Operator U	Radiology Tech Intern U	OR Tech I U	Medical Records Clerk U	MWWC Job Description
Monitor Tech	Certification 2004	Carticipalycular interventional recit	Pre-service specialist	Radiology Tech Charge	Radiology Tech	Ultrasound Tech Charge	Ultrasound Tech	Charge CT Tech	CT Tech	WHBC Secretary	Lab Section Coordinator Charge	Lab Section Coordinator	Med Tech ASCP Charge	Med Tech ASCP	Clinical Engineer Lead	Clinical Engineer	Maintenance Specialist Lead	Maintenance Specialist	EEG/EKG Tech Charge	EEG/EKG Tech	Coder Innations (Outpatient	Maintenance Works II	ED Paramedic	Polysom Tech (Reg)	Respiratory Therapist Registered Charge	Respiratory Therapist Registered	Physical Therapy Assistant	Transcriptionist	Coder Outpatient	WEW	Pharmacy Tech Certified	LISTONIA MORE	Stenie Processing Tech II	Clerk Specialist Lead	Shipping and Receiving Clerk	Scheduling Coord OR	Materials Aide OR	Maintenance Worker	Central Scheduling Coordinator	Patient Registration Clerk Lead	Diagnostic Imaging Receptionist	Storeroom Clerk	Patient Registration Clerk	Diagnostic Imaging Transporter/Patient Transporter	CNAII	Switchboard Operator	Radiology Tech Intern	OR Aide	Clerk Generalist	SEIU Appendix C Job Description
															20																																		- 4	SELECTIVE
\$ 19.54	-		1		\$ 32.48	\$ 41.60	\$ 39.60	\$ 40.46	\$ 38.46	\$ 18.16	\$ 40.00	\$ 38.00	\$ 36.60	\$ 34.60	\$ 32.80	101	\$ 29.27	-			- 1	- 1	\$ 27.03			\$ 31.52	\$ 24.56			- 1	-	5 22.77			\$ 18.51	\$ 18.51	\$ 18.51	5 18.51			\$ 19.09	\$ 17.59	\$ 17.59	\$ 17.59	\$ 19.95	\$ 16.49	- 1		2	Step 1
\$ 20.13	1	34 14 5	- 1-	\$ 35,45	1	\$ 42.79	\$ 40.79	\$ 41.61	\$ 39.61	\$ 18.70	\$ 41.14	\$ 39.14	\$ 37.64	\$ 35.64	\$ 33.78	m	\$ 30.10				5 38 97		\$ 37.84	4.0		\$ 32.47	\$ 25.30			- 1		5 23.45		1	\$ 19.07	\$ 19.07		\$ 19.07			\$ 19.62	\$ 18.12	\$ 18.12	\$ 18.12	\$ 19.95	\$ 16.98		- 1	\$ 16.98	Step 2
\$ 20.73	1	h 3	1		\$ 34.45	\$ 44.01	\$ 42.01	\$ 42.80	\$ 40.80	\$ 19.26	\$ 42.31	\$ 40,31	\$ 38,71	100	\$ 34.79	1 1	23.1	- 1			5 30 84		\$ 28.68	10		\$ 33,44	\$ 26.06		.51	- 1		5 24.15		3100	\$ 19.64	\$ 19.64		\$ 19.64		\$ 20.16	\$ 20.16	5 18.66		5 18.66	\$ 20.55	\$ 17.49		- 1	\$ 17.49	Step 3
\$ 21.35		n v	20	·	S	\$ 45.27	\$ 43.27	\$ 44.02	-	\$ 19.84	\$ 43.52	\$ 41.52	-	-	\$ 35.83	S	S	S	S	^	~ 0	2	5 20 54		S	5 34.44	\$ 26.84	S	us :	vs .	\$	5 24.87	- 4	·	-	\$ 20.23	50	\$ 20.23	. 0	S	\$ 20.72	\$ 19.22	S	\$ 19.22	\$ 21.17		S	S		Step 4
\$ 21.99		2 40	0	. 5	S	s	\$ 44.57	\$ 45.28	-	\$ 20.44	\$ 44.77	\$ 42.77	-	-	\$ 36.90	S	S	S	5	4	2	^	5 30.43	. 4	S	-	\$ 27.65	S	5	5	s.	\$ 25.62	0	S	\$ 20.84	\$ 20.84	S	5 20.84	0 45	8	\$ 21.30	\$ 19.80	8	\$ 19.80	\$ 21.81	\$ 18.55	S	S	_	Step 5
2 22.65		10	0	S	S	S	7 \$ 45.91	8 \$ 46.58	8 \$ 44.58	4 \$ 21.05	S	7 \$ 44,05	4 \$ 42.11	S	60	S	s	S	S	0	19.02 5 3	0	2 4 31 34		S	7 \$ 36.53	5 \$ 28.48	S	S	S	s.	2 5 26.39	- 4	· so	4 \$ 21.47	4 5 21.47	S	4 5 21.47	0 10	s	\$ 21	0 \$ 20.39	S	5 20.39	1 \$ 22.46	\$ 19.11	S	S		Step 6
v		2	. 0	. 5	S	S	S	S	S	5 \$ 21.68	s	is	w	S	s	S	S	is	5	4	0	0	20		is	S	S	S	S	S	S	5	200	·	S	is	S	50	. 5	is	s	s	9 \$ 21.00	5	S	S	S	S	S	Step 7
23.33 5 24.		n 0			38.77 \$ 39.93		9 5 48.71	47.92 \$ 49.30	45.92 \$ 47.30	8 \$ 22.33	7 \$ 48.73	45.37 \$ 46.73	43.31 \$ 44.55	41.31 \$ 42.55	39.15 \$ 40.32			33.16 \$ 34.15	9 \$ 36.60	33.59 \$ 34.60	09.00 5 09.00	8 6 33	8 4 33 25	38.13 5 39.26	39.63 \$ 40.76	3 \$ 38.76	29.33 \$ 30.	26.98 \$ 27.79	4 5 28	5	5	27.18 \$ 28.00	0 5 25/	23.61 \$ 24.27	22.11 \$ 22.77	22.11 \$ 22.77		2211 \$ 22.77		S	s	0 \$ 21.63	S	0 \$ 21.63	3 5 23.	19.68 \$ 20.27 \$ 20.98 \$ 21.71 \$ 22.47 \$ 23.26 \$ 24.07 \$ 24.91	19.68 \$ 20.27	8 5 20	00 I	Step 8
24.03 \$ 24.87		2	0 0	·	S		71 \$ 50.41	S		33 \$ 23.11	50	S	S	S	60	sv.	w	S	S	0	1	0	2	0	50	sn.	S	79 \$ 28	50	S	S	00 5 28.98	2	27 \$ 25.07	S	50	S	00	2 10	· sn	sn.	sn.	53 \$ 22.39	vo.	82 \$ 24	27 \$ 20	40	S	S	Step 9
v		~ 0	2	100	is		S	50.96 \$ 5	S	s	in	s	S	S	S	34 5 4	S	35 5 3	5	0	2	0	to C 70.76	0	is	S	31.27 \$ 3	28.76 \$ 2	15 5 3	15 5 2	S	5	0	·		23.57 \$ 2	S	in 0		es.	S	s	S	39 5 2	.65 5 2	98 5 2	50	20.98 \$ 2	8 8	Step 10
25.74 5			20	1 50	42.78 \$	54.17 \$	2.17 \$	2.67 \$	50.67 \$	23.92 \$	52.06 \$	S	47.58 \$	S	43.19 \$	41.75 \$	8.09 \$	6.59 S	9.06 \$	10	3706 5	0 4	5 19 50	42.02 \$	43.52 \$	41.52 \$	2.36 \$	9.77 \$	0.17 \$	8 10 5	is .	29.99 5	20	100	24.39 \$	24.39 \$	24.39 \$	24.39 5	2 10	S	S	23.17 \$	23.17 \$	3 17 5	5.51 \$	1.71 \$	S	1.71 \$	S	10 Ste
20.04		2 88 72	28,40 3	46.28 \$	44.28 \$	\$6.00 \$	54.00 \$	54.44 \$	52.44 \$	24.76 \$		51.81 \$		47.18 \$	44.70 \$	43.21 \$	39.37 \$	37.87 \$		28.86	28.86	38 36	28.36	43,47 \$	44.97 \$	42.97 \$	33.49 \$	30.81 \$	31.23 \$	29.08 \$	29.08 \$	31.04 5	28.17 \$	26,74 \$	25.24 \$	25.24 \$	25.24 \$	25.24 5	25.24 \$	25,48 \$	25,48 \$	23.98 \$	23.98 \$	23.98 \$	26.40 \$	22.47 \$	22.47 \$	22.47 \$ 23.26		Step 11 St
21.57		56.80	29,40 3	47.83	45.83	57.89		56.28	54.28	25,63	55.62	53.62	50.83	48.83	46.26	44.72	40.70	39.20	41.70	39 70	\$ 39.50	38 15	38 35	44,97	46.47	44,47	34.66	31.89 \$	32.32	30.10	30.10	32.13	29,16	\$ 27.62	26.12	26.12	26.12	26.12	26.12	26.32	26.32	24.82	24.82	24.82	27.32	23.26	\$ 23.26	23.26	23.26	Step 12
28.53	30.73	58.70	30.49	49.43	\$ 47.43	59.85	57.85	58.18	56.18	\$ 26.53	57.50	55.50	52.54	50.54	47.88	\$ 46.29	42.07	40.57	43.09	4109	4100	39.49	5 3949	46.53	48.03	46.03	\$ 35.87 \$	\$ 33.01 \$	\$ 33.45	31.15	31.15	5 33.25	30.18	28.53	27.03	27.03		27.03	27.03	27.19	27.19	\$ 25.69	\$ 25.69	\$ 25.69	5 2828	\$ 24.07	\$ 24.07	\$ 24.07		Step 13
\$ 49.53		58 03 5			\$ 49.09	\$ 61.87	\$ 59.87	\$ 60.15	\$ 58.15	\$ 27.46	\$ 59.44	\$ 57.44	\$ 54.31	5 52.31	\$ 49.56	47.91	43,49					5 40.87	\$ 40.87	5 48.14	49.64	47.64	37.13	34.17	34.62			5 34.41			\$ 27.98	\$ 27.98		5 27.98				\$ 26.59	\$ 26.59	\$ 26.59	\$ 29.27	\$ 24.91	5 \$ 24.07 \$ 24.91	\$ 24.91	\$ 24.91	Step 14
\$ 30.56		2	0	100	S	v.	\$ 61.97	\$ 62.19		\$ 28.42	\$ 61.45	\$ 59.45		S	\$ 51.29	S	w	so	50 1	0		1	\$ 4230	0 00	S	sn.	S	S	so t	S	S	\$ 35.61	2	· w		S	50		2	S	w		S		\$ 30.29	100	50	S		Step 15

S088 NEW	S087 NEW	S087 NEW	S087 NEW	S086 NEW	W3N 5805	5084 NEW	S083 NEW	S082 NEW	S082 NEW	W3N 180S	S080 NEW	S079 NEW	5078	5077	5076	5075	5074	5073	5073	5071	5070	5069	5069	\$068	8905	5067	5064	5063	5060	5059	8505	\$058	5056
Nurse Asst Cert (CNA)	Speech Pathologist	S087 NEW Physical Therapy Lead	Occupational Therapist Ld	Electrophysiology Tech Lead U	Electrophysiology Tech III U	Electrophysiology Tech II U	Cardiovasc Tech AdvskilsU	Electrophysiology Tech I U	Cardiovasc Tech III U	Cardiovasc Tech II U	Surgical Tech Cert U	Phlebotomist/Lab Aide U	Interventional Rad Techno U	Unit Services Coord Ld U	Unit Secretary U	Pharmacy Tech Cert Ld U	Echo Tech Lead U	Holter Analyst Lead U	Endoscopy Tech Lead U	Clinical Pharmacist Ld U	Clinical Pharmacist U	Nuclear Med Techno Chrg U	MRI Techno Charge U	Nudear Medical Techno U	MRI Techno U	OB Tech U	Custodian Lead U	Custodian U	EKG Tech U	EKG/CCT Tech U	Holter Analyst U	Endoscopy Tech U	Echo Tech U
NEW	NEW	NEW	WEW	NEW	NEW	NEW	Cardiovascular Interventional Tech Charge	Wan	NEW	NEW	Certified Surgical Tech	Lab Assistant	Interventional Rad Tech	Unit Services Coordinator Lead	Unit Services Coordinator	Pharmacy Tech Lead	Echo Tech Lead	Holter Analyst Lead	Endo Tech Lead	Clinical Pharmacist Lead	Clinical Pharmacist	Nuclear Med Tech Charge	MRI Tech Charge	Nuclear Med Tech	MRI Tech	O8 Tech	Custodian Team Lead	Custodian	EKG Tech	EKG/CCT Tech	Holter Analyst	Endoscopy Tech	Echo Tech
30																																	
5 18.13	\$ 41.75	\$ 41.75	\$ 41.75	\$ 49.81	5 48.31	\$ 46.29	\$ 45.78	\$ 44.28	\$ 44.28	\$ 42.27	\$ 28.38	\$ 19.08	\$ 36.16	\$ 19.62	\$ 18.12	\$ 22.83	\$ 41.73	\$ 25.22	\$ 25.22	\$ 64.54	\$ 63.04	\$ 39.52	\$ 39.52	\$ 37.52	\$ 37.52	\$ 20.18	\$ 17.86	\$ 16.36	\$ 18.87	\$ 21.18	\$ 23.72	\$ 23.72	\$ 40.23
\$ 18.13	\$ 42.96	\$ 42.96	\$ 42.96	\$ 51.26	\$ 49.76	\$ 47.68	\$ 47.11	\$ 45.61	\$ 45.61	\$ 43.54	\$ 29.23	\$ 19.65	\$ 37.24	\$ 20.16	\$ 18.66	\$ 23.47	\$ 42.94	\$ 25.93	\$ 25.93	5 66,43	\$ 64.93	\$ 40.65	\$ 40.65	\$ 38.65	\$ 38.65	\$ 20.79	\$ 18.35	\$ 16.85	\$ 19,44	\$ 21.82	\$ 24.43	\$ 24.43	\$ 41.44
\$ 18.67	\$ 44.20	\$ 44.20	\$ 44.20	\$ 52.75	\$ 51.25	\$ 49.11	\$ 48.48	\$ 46.98	\$ 46.98	\$ 44.85	\$ 30.11	\$ 20.24	\$ 38.36	\$ 20.72	\$ 19.22	\$ 24.13	5 44.18	\$ 26.66	\$ 26.66	\$ 68.38	\$ 66.88	5 41.81	\$ 41.81	\$ 39.81	\$ 39.81	\$ 21.41	\$ 18.86	\$ 17.36	\$ 20.02	\$ 22.47	\$ 25.16	\$ 25.16	\$ 42.68
\$ 19.23	\$ 45.48	\$ 45.48	\$ 45.48	\$ 54.29	\$ 52.79	\$ 50.58	\$ 49.89	\$ 48.39	\$ 48.39	\$ 46.20	\$ 31.01	\$ 20.85	\$ 39.51	\$ 21.30	\$ 19.80	\$ 24.81	\$ 45.46	\$ 27.41	\$ 27.41	\$ 70.39	\$ 68.89	\$ 43.00	\$ 43.00	\$ 41.00	\$ 41.00	\$ 22.05	\$ 19.38	\$ 17.88	\$ 20.62	\$ 23.14	\$ 25.91	\$ 25.91	\$ 43.96
\$ 19.81	\$ 46.80	\$ 46.80	\$ 46.80	\$ 55.87	\$ 54.37	\$ 52.10	\$ 51.34	\$ 49.84	\$ 49.84	\$ 47.59	\$ 31.94	5 21.48	\$ 40.70	\$ 21.89	\$ 20.39	\$ 25.51	\$ 46.78	\$ 28.19	5 28.19	\$ 72.46	\$ 70.96	5 44.23	\$ 44.23	\$ 42.23	\$ 42.23	\$ 22.71	\$ 19.92	5 18.42	5 21.24	\$ 23.83	\$ 26.69	\$ 26.69	\$ 45.28
\$ 20.40	\$ 48.16	\$ 48.16	5 48.16	s	\$ 56,00	\$ 53,66	\$ 52.84	\$ 51.34	\$ 51.34	\$ 49.02	\$ 32.90	8 \$ 22.12	5 41.92	\$ 22.50	\$ 21.00	\$ 26.23	\$ 48.14	\$ 28.99	5 28.99	5 5 74.59	5 73.09	\$ 45.50	\$ 45.50	\$ 43.50	\$ 43.50	\$ 23.39	\$ 20.47	2 \$ 18.97	\$ 21,88	\$ 24.54	\$ 27.49	\$ 27.49	\$ 46.64
0 \$ 21.01	ş	s	6 \$ 49.56	0 \$ 59.18	0 \$ 57.68	6 \$ 55.27	4 \$ 54.38	4 5 52.88	4 \$ 52.88	s	0 \$ 33.89	2 \$ 22.78	2 5 43.18	0 \$ 23.13	0 \$ 21.63	3 \$ 26.97	4 \$ 49.54	s	s	9 \$ 76.78	9 5 75.28	0 \$ 46.81	0 \$ 46.81	s	0 \$ 44.81	9 \$ 24.09	7 \$ 21.04	7 \$ 19.54	8 \$ 22.54	S	9 \$ 28.31	S	4 5 48.04
1 \$ 21.64	s	6 \$ 51.00	6 \$ 51.00	8 \$ 60.91	8 \$ 59,41	7 \$ 56.93	8 \$ 55.97	S	v	50.49 \$ 52.	S	8 \$ 23.46	55	3 \$ 23.78	3 \$ 22.28	50	s	w	29.81 \$ 30.	s	8 \$ 77.54	s	\$1 \$ 48.15	14.81 \$ 46.	44	S	*	64 \$ 20.13	s	S	11 \$ 29.16	28.31 \$ 29.16	3 49.48
S	51.00 \$ 52.73	S	S	s		93 \$ 58.92	s	54.47 \$ 56	54.47 \$ 56.38	52.00 \$ 53	34.91 \$ 36	¢5	ss	S	S	27.73 \$ 28	50.98 \$ 52		30.66 \$ 31	S	S	48.15 \$ 49	S	46.15 \$ 47	46.15 \$ 47	24.81 \$ 25	21.63 \$ 22	S	S	s	vs.	w	S
22.40 \$ 2	.73 \$ 5	52.73 \$ 5	52.73 \$ 5	62.99 \$ 6	s	s	57.88 \$ 5	56.38 \$ 5	S	53.82 \$ 5	36.13 \$ 3	24.28 \$ 2	S	24.56 \$ 2	23.06 \$ 2	28.65 \$ 2	52.71 \$ 5		31.68 \$ 3	S	80.25 \$ 8	49.77 \$ 5	49.77 \$ 5	47,77 \$ 4	47.77 \$ 4	25.68 \$ 2	22.33 \$ 2	20.83 \$ 2	s	S	30.18 \$ 3	30.18 \$ 3	51.21 \$ 5
23.18 \$	\$ 54.52 \$	54.52 \$	54.52 \$	is	S		59.85 \$	58.35 \$	58.35 \$	\$5.70 \$	37.39 \$	25.13 \$	S	25.37 \$	23.87 \$	29.60 \$	54.50 \$		32.74 \$	S	83.06 \$	51.44 \$	51.44 \$	49.44 \$	49.44 \$	26.58 \$	23.06 \$	21.56 \$	24.87 \$	s	31.24 \$	31.24 \$	53.00 \$
23.99 \$	S	10	56.38 \$	67.37 \$	65.87 \$	63.11 \$	61.89 \$	60.39 \$	60.39 \$	57.65 \$	38.70 \$	26.01 \$	49.32 \$	26.21 \$	24.71 5	30.58 \$	56.36 \$	33.83 \$	33.83 \$ 34.96	87.47 \$	85.97 \$	53.17 \$	53.17 \$	51.17 \$	51.17 \$	27.51 \$	23.81 \$	22.31 \$	25.74 \$	28.87 \$	32.33 \$	32.33 \$	54.86 \$
24.83 \$	\$ 58.30 \$	58.30 \$	58.30	69.68	68.18	\$ 65.32	64.00	62.50	62.50 \$	59.67	40.05 \$	26.92	51.05 \$	27.07 \$	25.57 \$	31.60 \$	\$ 58.28 \$	33.83 \$ 34.96 \$	34.96 \$	90.48	88.98	54.96 \$	54.96 \$	52.96 \$	52.96 \$	28.47 \$	24.59 \$	23.09	26,64	29.88	33.46 \$	33.46 \$	56.78
25.70	60.29	60.29	\$ 60.29	\$ 72.07	\$ 70.57	\$ 67.61	\$ 66.19	\$ 64.69	\$ 64.69 \$	\$ 61.76 \$	41.45	\$ 27.86	52.84	27.96	26.46	32.65	\$ 60.27 \$	\$ 36.13 \$	\$ 36.13 \$	93.59	\$ 92.09	\$ 56.81 \$	56.81	54.81	\$ 54.81 \$	\$ 29.47 \$	25.40	\$ 23.90	\$ 27.57	\$ 30.93	34.63	34.63	\$ 58.77 \$
\$ 26.60	\$ 62.35	\$ 62.35	\$ 62.35	\$ 74.54	\$ 73.04	\$ 69.98	\$ 68.45	\$ 66.95	66.95	63.92	\$ 42.90	\$ 28.84	\$ 54.69	\$ 28.89	\$ 27.39	\$ 33.74	62.33		\$ 37.34 \$	96.81	\$ 95.31	58.73	\$ 58.73	\$ 56.73	56.73	30,50	\$ 26.24	\$ 24.74	\$ 28.53	\$ 32.01	\$ 35.84	\$ 35.84	60.83
\$ 27.53	5 64.48	\$ 64.48	\$ 64.48	\$ 77.10	\$ 75.60	\$ 72.43	\$ 70.79	\$ 69.29	w	\$ 66.16	\$ 44.40	\$ 29.85	\$ 56.60	\$ 29.85	\$ 28.35	\$ 34.87	\$ 64,46	\$ 38.59	\$ 38.59	\$ 100.15	\$ 98.65	\$ 60.72	\$ 60.72	\$ 58.72	\$ 58.72	\$ 31.57	\$ 27.11	\$ 25.61	\$ 29.53	\$ 33.13	\$ 37.09	\$ 37.09	\$ 62.96

APPENDIX B – 12-HOUR SHIFTS

- 1. The employee regularly scheduled to work three (3) twelve-hour shifts per week shall be considered a full-time employee.
- 2. The workday will be twelve and one-half (12 ½) hours with one-half (1/2) hour unpaid meal break.
- 3. For overtime purposes, the employee will receive overtime pay for hours worked in excess of thirty-six (36) hours per calendar week or in excess of twelve (12) hours in a workday in accordance with Article 20 and overtime law. Education days and hours spent in meetings will not apply All hours worked by a full time employee on the consecutive days of 6,7, 8, 9, & 10 will be paid at time and one-half (1 ½) the employee's regular base rate.
- 4. For shift differential purposes, the employee will receive the shift differential; based on where hours worked occur on the clock as specified in Article 25: Differentials.
- 5. Earned leave accrual shall be determined by the number of hours paid.
- 6. Twelve hour shift employees will not be routinely scheduled to work in excess of four days in a row except by mutual agreement between the employee and manager. A copy will be given to the union.

APPENDIX C – RECOGNITION CLAUSE

Bargaining Unit Description

The Hospital recognizes the Union as the Exclusive bargaining agent for all employees working at McKenzie Willamette Medical Center in the following classifications:

Cardiovascular Interventional Tech	Maintenance Worker II
Cardiovascular Tech II	Materials Aide OR
Cardiovascular Tech III	Med Tech ASCP
Cardiovascular Tech Lead	Medical Tech ASCP Charge
Cath Lab Asst	Monitor Tech
Central Scheduling Coordinator	Monitor Tech Lead
Certified Surgical Tech	MRI Tech
Charge CT Tech	MRI Tech Charge
Clerk Generalist	Nuclear Med Tech
Clerk Specialist	Nuclear Med Tech Charge
Clerk Specialist Lead	OB Tech
Clinical Dietician	Occupational Therapist
Clinical Engineer	Occupational Therapist Lead
Clinical Engineer Lead	OR Aide
Clinical Pharmacist	Patient Registration Clerk
Clinical Pharmacist Lead	Patient Registration Clerk Lead
CNA	Patient Transporter
CNA II	Pharmacy Tech Certified
Coder Inpatient/Outpatient	Pharmacy Tech Lead
Coder Outpatient	Pharmacy Tech Student
CT Tech	Physical Therapist
Custodian	Physical Therapist Lead
Custodian Team Lead	Physical Therapy Assistant
CV Interventional Tech Charge	Polysom Tech
Diagnostic Imaging Receptionist	Pre-Service Specialist
Echo Tech	Purchasing Clerk
Echo Tech Lead	Purchasing Clerk Lead
ED Paramedic	Radiology Assistant
EEG/ EKG Tech Charge	Radiology Tech
EEG/EKG	Radiology Tech Charge
EKG/CCT Tech	Radiology Tech Intern
Electrophysiology Tech I	Respiratory Therapist Registered
Electrophysiology Tech II	Respiratory Therapist Registered Charge
Electrophysiology Tech III	Scheduling Coord OR

Electrophysiology Tech IV	Shipping and Receiving Clerk
Endo Tech Lead	Social Worker (MSW)
Endoscopy Tech	Speech Therapist
Histology Aide	Sterile Processing Tech II
Holter Analyst	Storeroom Clerk
Holter Analyst Lead	Surgical Support Aide Team Lead
Interventional Rad Tech	Technical Lab Assistant
Lab Assistant	Transcriptionist
Lab Section Coordinator	Ultrasound Tech
Lab Section Coordinator Charge	Ultrasound Tech Charge
Lead Holter Analyst	Unit Services Coordinator
Maintenance Specialist	Unit Services Coordinator Lead
Maintenance Specialist Lead	WHBC Secretary
Maintenance Worker	

And all other positions covered in our collective bargaining units as they are defined by the National Labor Relations Act.

APPENDIX D – EMPLOYEE RATES

	2021 Rates	Proposed 2022 Rates	Proposed 2023 Rates	Proposed 2024 Rates
	Employee Per Pay	Employee Per Pay	Employee Per Pay	Employee Per Pay
McKenzie-Willamette Premium Medical Plan	Per Pay Period	0%	5%	5%
EE Only	\$89.76	\$89.76	\$94.24	\$98.95
EE + Child/Ren	\$161.80	\$161.80	\$169.89	\$178.39
EE + Spouse	\$192.14	\$192.14	\$201.75	\$211.84
EE + Family	\$262.94	\$262.94	\$276.09	\$289.90

McKenzie-Willamette Choice Medical Plan	Per Pay Period	0%	5%	5%
EE Only	\$24.02	\$24.02	\$25.22	\$26.48
EE + Child/Ren	\$41.72	\$41.72	\$43.80	\$46.00
EE + Spouse	\$50.56	\$50.56	\$53.09	\$55.74
EE + Family	\$68.27	\$68.27	\$71.69	\$75.27

	(Current	0%	3%	3%
Dental Plan		2021	2022	20223	2024
EE Only	\$	7.46	\$ 7.46	\$ 7.68	\$ 7.91
EE + Child/Ren	\$	13.76	\$ 13.76	\$ 14.17	\$ 14.60
EE + Spouse	\$	13.76	\$ 13.76	\$ 14.17	\$ 14.60
EE + Family	\$	26.38	\$ 26.38	\$ 27.17	\$ 27.99

	Current	0%	0%	3%
Vision Plan	2021	2022	20223	2024
EE Only	\$ 3.48	\$ 3.48	\$ 3.48	\$ 3.58
EE + Child/Ren	\$ 7.31	\$ 7.31	\$ 7.31	\$ 7.53
EE + Spouse	\$ 6.83	\$ 6.83	\$ 6.83	\$ 7.03
EE + Family	\$ 11.01	\$ 11.01	\$ 11.01	\$ 11.34

Letter of Understanding: PANDEMIC POLICY

The parties share a mutual interest in assuring the health and safety of patients, families, staff and the community. Nurses and other healthcare workers are on the front lines in the delivery of essential health services to patients in need. The decisions of all parties will be guided by the Oregon Health Authority (OHA), OSHA, CDC, American College of Emergency Physicians (ACEP), World Health Organization (WHO), Association of Women's Health, Obstetric and Neonatal Nurses (AWHONN), American Association of Critical-Care Nurses (AACN) and other public health agencies.

1. Personal Protective Equipment (PPE):

The Hospital shall continue to use OHA guidelines on appropriate and judicious use of PPE including Powered Air Purifying Respirators (PAPRs), half-mask or full-facepiece elastomeric respirators, N95 facemasks, gloves, gowns, and facial shields and/or goggles. All members working in positions with a likelihood of contact with the COVID-19 will be provided adequate PPE against aerosol transmission as defined by nationally recognized evidence-based guidelines of the COVID-19. All PPE shall be used according to manufacturer's specifications, OHA, ACEP, WHO, AWHONN, AACN and based on mutually agreed upon nationally recognized organizational guidelines.

As a result, the parties wish to work in collaboration to take reasonable measures to protect patients, families, and staff from unnecessary exposure to COVID-19. At least one employee represented by SEIU shall attend and participate in the PPE Committee meetings.. Any employee attendees shall be paid at their regular rate of pay and shall be released from their regularly scheduled shift for attendance at these meetings.

2. Exposure Guidelines:

A. Employees who present to work with a belief they may have been exposed to COVID-19 through close contact exposure with a symptomatic person(s) and are determined a high/medium risk by the Employee Health or Infection Control Nurse(s) and yet are showing no symptoms will be screened and monitored with temperature checks twice daily and wear a mask in the performance of their duties while at work. In consultation with designated hospital administrators, asymptomatic staff will continue to work based upon available staffing resources.

For fourteen days, employees need to ensure the employee health nurse or their designee is updated with temperature checks daily and report any development of symptoms by phone or email.

B. Employees who are symptomatic (fever >100.4, cough, shortness of breath, loss of taste or smell, body aches) should stay away from work until the symptoms subside for at least 24 hours without symptom altering medication or they present with a COVID NEGATIVE test result. These

employees should notify the Employee Health, or Infection Control in the absence of Employee Health, for screening prior to returning to work. Earned leave (PTO) or Vacation and normal sick leave policies would apply.

I. Caregiver Testing:

McKenzie-Willamette caregivers who believe they may have been exposed to COVID-19 can be tested through the Employee Health Office after it is determined they meet the Employee Health protocol as defined by the Infectious Disease Practitioner's guidance for appropriate testing. This testing shall be provided at no cost to the employee.

II. Benefits:

Employees on low census hours may supplement with Earned leave (PTO) hours and will continue to accrue earned leave on any hours which are paid (worked or PTO). Employees who are on low census due to COVID-19 will continue to receive health benefits based on their full or part time status as long as they continue to pay the employee portion of the health benefits premiums.

Nothing in the agreement is intended to prevent members from accessing other state benefits for which they may qualify, including but not limited to unemployment compensation insurance, paid family and medical leave, or workers compensation. The Hospital shall not contest unemployment claims for any member who suffers a loss of work as a result of COVID-19.

III. Accommodation and Time off due to COVID:

Employees may receive time off due to COVID as determined by the Hospital's current policies including Employee Health, Oregon Paid Sick Leave, Leaves of Absence and Requests for Time Off policies. This includes a nurse or healthcare worker, who is unable to work due to being part of the CDC's at-risk group, who may request an accommodation. If a workplace accommodation cannot be granted, the employee may be granted a leave of absence and have access to accrued time off benefits. Work accommodations will continue to be addressed in accordance with applicable law and on a case-by-case basis.

IV. Pandemic Sick Leave:

Employees may have access to Pandemic Sick Leave hours up to a maximum of two (2) weeks based on their FTE for Regular FT and PT Employees (.5 FTE or greater). This agreement provides a one-time bank of hours. Any additions to the Pandemic Sick Leave hours can be separately negotiated. These hours are non-transferable.

Guidelines for accessing Pandemic Sick Leave:

The employee must use at least the level of PPE required by hospital policy, and have had no leisure travel within 14 days to a county/country that has been identified as an area with a positive infection rate of 5% or more by testing or presumption (in the case of limited testing materials or capacity) or is considered a "hot spot" by OHA, the Oregon Governor's office, or the state health authority governing that state, and either

- The employee has been quarantined by Employee Health, a positive test result or symptomatic inclusion per their health care provider or Lane County Public Health or
- ii. The employee is required to be off work for being symptomatic or caring for symptomatic family members, where family member is defined by FMLA or OFLA, whichever is more advantageous for the employee.

Exempted from this travel consideration is Lane County, the Employee's county of residence, and any counties the Employee must pass through to get from one to the other.

The requirement to remain off work will be determined and directed by the Employee Health Nurse or the local public health department. Employees on pandemic sick leave may return to work when cleared by Employee Health and either their PCP or our Infectious Disease physician.

Absences due to COVID-19 as described in Section 2 will not result in disciplinary action in the unscheduled absence policy.

3. Staffing:

A. Employees that are low censused due to reductions in staffing during this crisis may have the opportunity to pick up hours in the labor pool.

4. Communications:

- A. The Hospital shall round in all departments on all shifts to receive concerns and answer questions from employees. However, the Hospital can be available to meet on an as needed basis to address additional concerns and have dialogue with the Union to consider solutions to current issues, should they exist.
- B. The Hospital management shall communicate any new policies or procedures developed and distributed to employees. These can be found in daily communications, posted on individual units throughout the Hospital, and available online. The employer will notify the union prior

- to enacting any new policies or procedures that include changes to wages, hours or working conditions.
- C. The Hospital management shall send updates and provide access to the most current information available from the Centers for Disease Control (CDC), the Oregon Health Authority and Lane County Public Health Department. COVID-19 or other pandemic virus updates will be forwarded by the Hospital to the SEIU via email as updated communications are created.
- D. Employee Health and Infection Control shall communicate to employees any potential risk created by patients or other employees when known by the Hospital.

5. Pandemic Appreciation Payment

Regular full time employees actively employed at MWMC as of 1/1/2022 will receive a one-time payment of-seven hundred fifty dollars (\$750) in recognition of their work during the COVID 19 pandemic. The amounts of this one-time bonus will be prorated for regular part time and PRN employees who are actively employees as of 1/1/2022, based on their scheduled FTE; however, each of these employees will receive at least \$500.

The Union recognizes the Hospital's responsibility and duty to ensure patient information is not released inappropriately. The Hospital recognizes members have a right to report concerns about health and safety to third parties, including regulators, media, etc. without fear of unlawful reprisal or discipline. Furthermore, the Hospital affirms that our existing collective bargaining agreement is in full effect during any pandemic.

LETTER OF AGREEMENT: CARDIOVASCULAR OPERATING ROOM ("CVOR")

McKenzie-Willamette Medical Center (Hospital) and SEIU Local 49 (Union) hereby mutually agree that the following terms and conditions shall apply to certified surgical technologists in the CVOR:

- 1. Separate Unit. The CVOR shall be considered a separate unit from the main operating room and will maintain separate work schedules and standby schedules and seniority pools.
- 2. Standby Compensation and Scheduling. Bargaining unit members in the CVOR who are scheduled for or work more than a specified number of hours of standby in a four-week schedule cycle shall receive one and one-half (1 ½) times the rate of standby pay cited in Article 27 for standby hours in excess of the specified number of hours according to the following formula:

# of Qualified Surgical Technologists or other non-management staff Qualified and Available to Provide Call Coverage	# of Standby Hours
3	260
4	192
5	136
6	112

Standby hours will be equitably distributed among surgical technologists.

- 3. Minimum Compensation Guarantee. Surgical technologists in the CVOR shall be guaranteed compensation for eighty-five percent (85%) of his/her scheduled position hours per pay period. This guarantee includes call back hours worked but does not include standby hours. When the Hospital employs three (3) or more qualified Surgical Technologists, the Minimum Compensation Guarantee under this Section 3 shall cease.
- 4. Low Census Assignment. Surgical technologists who would have been cancelled or placed on standby may be floated to the main operating room for orientation or, if already oriented, to fulfill a documented staffing need in that department. When floated to the main operating room while remaining available to the CVOR, the surgical technologist will be released to return to the CVOR within thirty (30) minutes of being notified that their services are needed there.

LETTER OF AGREEMENT: ENDOSCOPY

McKenzie-Willamette Medical Center (Hospital) and SEIU Local 49 (Union) agree to the following terms and conditions to ensure consistency and fairness with daily staffing in the Endoscopy Unit and to provide clear directions regarding staffing before and during shift.

Endoscopy technicians will not be required to maintain a percentage for staffing purposes.

If Endoscopy does not require both technicians (i.e., there are no cases scheduled):

There will be an equitable rotation of workers released to the house or sent home, beginning with the person with the least seniority and continuing in inverse seniority order. An endoscopy technician released to the house or sent home will then be moved to the bottom of the rotation and the next least senior technician will be at the top of the list. An Endoscopy Technician will be released to the house or cancelled if the hospital does not need an Endoscopy Technician to perform C.N.A. duties.

Holidays:

An Endoscopy technician will be on call for all recognized holidays. Rotation of those holidays will be based on the previous year's holiday schedule. If an employee works on Christmas and has Thanksgiving off during one year, then they will work Thanksgiving and have Christmas off the next year.

LETTER OF AGREEMENT: DUAL MODALITY

Dual Modality in Diagnostic Imaging- Dual Modality is defined as a Tech that is both qualified and utilized to do more than one modality. Because the hospital benefits by not being required to staff more than one employee to do multiple modalities the hospital agrees to pay dual modality. Dual modality pay of one dollar and thirty cents (\$1.30) additional per hour will be paid when the following conditions are met:

1. An employee whose primary job code is in a lower paid classification who is also required and competent to fulfill the classifications of a higher paid modality within the diagnostic imaging area.

-OR-

- 2. An employee is utilized and also is required and competent in two or more higher paying modalities within the diagnostic imaging area.
- 3. It is agreed upon that no employee in their current job after this letter of agreement will suffer any reduction in their compensation package as a result of this agreement.
- 4. It is not the hospital's intent to utilize dual modality in lieu of its current practice of hiring employees into higher paying modalities when positions are vacated or deemed necessary to be filled or when census is such that more than one modality is needed on a shift.

SIDELETTER ON "FINLEY HOSPITAL" TEXT

The Parties agree that each and every compensation provision set forth in Article 23 – Wage Rates -- is intended to remain "status quo" upon and following the expiration of this Agreement (pursuant to Article 43 -- Duration of Agreement), such that the specific rate of such compensation in effect upon expiration shall remain unchanged unless and until a new collective bargaining agreement succeeding this Agreement is reached or the Parties reach a lawful impasse in negotiations toward a new collective bargaining agreement intended to succeed this Agreement.

The Parties agree that the provisions set forth in this Sideletter are specifically intended to constitute a clear and express statutory waiver by the Union of any statutory or contractual right which otherwise would inure to the benefit of the Union and/or the Employees represented by the Union for the purposes of collective bargaining who are covered by this Agreement relative to the compensation provisions of this Agreement referenced above -- Thus, the parties agree that the provisions of the Sideletter are specifically intended to negate the holding of the National Labor Relations Board in The Finley Hospital , 359 NLRB No .9 (September 28, 2012) and the underlying rationale of the National Labor Relations Board in The Finley Hospital, supra.

The Preceding Collective Bargaining Agreement is Effective September 1, 2021-December 31
2024

For	McKenzie	Willamette	Medical	Center
-----	----------	------------	---------	--------

— Docusigned by: Meredith P. Nelson	6/23/2022
Meredith Nelson, CFO	 Date

For the Service Employees International Union Local 49

—DocuSigned by:	
Meg Memi	6/23/2022
— AF27F1AD99558482. Meg Niemi, President	Date
— DocuSigned by:	
Andrew Barnes	6/15/2022
Andrew Barnes, Organizer	Date